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Vision Statement 
A progressive, growing com-

munity, enjoying a qual-

ity lifestyle in a sustain-

able, rural and coastal envi-

ronment. 

 

 

 

 

 

Mission State-

ment 

Provide a safe, healthy and 

sustainable environment 

for our growing commu-

nity, business and visitors, 

by providing quality ser-

vices, infrastructure and 

  
The values or behaviours that the Council will embrace to support our Mission and guide 

us in achieving our Vision are: 

Leadership & Diplomacy – by acting strategically and effectively managing our 

relationships  

· Teamwork  

 – through unity, co-operation and support 

· Professionalism  

 – through commitment, quality and timeliness of work delivered 

· Honesty & Integrity  

 – building trust and loyalty with the community and within Council 

· Respect  

 – for others, acting with humility and empathy 

· Innovative & Open-Minded  

 -  being proactive in continually improving our services  

Core Values  

Official opening of the                   

Mallala ‘Hub’ on  24 May 2010  
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District Council of Mallala 

The Year’s Achievements  
Outcome 

(SP#) 
Performance 

1.1 Continued to liaise with various health and family service providers to en-

sure that new links are created and existing links maintained 

1.5 Continued maintenance of cemetery records for burials and leases to be 

maintained 

1.9 Continued to lobby for opportunities for urban expansion and passenger 

rail link at Two Wells and Mallala through BRSF discussions 

2.1 Complete Dublin Entry Feature design and apply for funding for construc-

tion through the State Government’s Better Places for People Program 

2.2 Continued to promote the potential for economic growth within the Council 

area at regional planning forums 

2.2 Indentified public consultation categories within the Development Plan to 

streamline development applications 

2.5 Identified opportunities for the staging of growth around Two Wells, Mal-

lala and Dublin within the Section 30 Development Plan Review process 

3.1 Encouraged sustainable land management practices through the develop-

ment assessment process 

3.3 Investigated flood mitigation options in conjunction with the Two Wells 

Residential and Commercial DPA 

3.5 Completed environmentally friendly landscaping to Principal Office includ-

ing sustainable water capture and use 

3.6 Prepared Development Plan Amendment to review commercial and retail 

policy at Two Wells; and draft centre development guidelines 

3.7 Prepared joint Gawler River Revised Flood Plain DPA with Playford and 

Gawler Councils 

4.1 Allocated additional resources to control Committee meeting agendas and 

minutes, including posting on Council web page as required 

4.5 Developed a Risk Management Program (Good Governance Plan) to assist 

in the rectification of deficiencies and to achieve best practice 
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Directorate Male Female 
Full     

Time 

Part    

Time 
Casual 

Contract 

Governance       

Chief Executive Officer 1     1 

Executive  Assistant  1 1    

Governance Total 1 1 1 0 0 1 

       

Corporate Services       

Corporate Services Manager 1  1   1 

OHS/Risk Management  Officer 1  1    

Rates & IT Officer 1      

HR/Payroll Officer 1  1    

Accounts Payable/Customer Ser-

vice 

 1 1    

Accounts Receivable/Customer 

Service 

 1 1    

Customer Service Officer  3 1 1 1  

Finance Officer  1    1 

Cleaner  1   1  

Corporate Services Total 4 8 5 1 2 2 

       

Environment and             Devel-

opment Services 

      

Manager Environment and  Devel-

opment Services 

1     1 

Personal Assistant / Records Officer  1 1    

Planning Officer 1  1    

Building Assessment Officer 1  1    

Building / Compliance Officer 1  1    

Environment & Development 

Services Total 

4 1 4 0 0 1 

During the period Council employed a range of full-time, part-time, casual and contract em-

ployees, including individuals seeking work experience.  

Council employees performed a range of core functions associated with their roles, whilst at 

the same time taking on additional tasks and responsibilities to negate Council’s lack of re-

sources.   

Those core roles are consistent with the following table: 

Human Resources 
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District Council of Mallala 

Directorate Male Female 
Full     

Time 

Part    

Time 
Casual 

Contract 

Community Services       

Community Services Manager 1  1    

Administration Assistant  1   1  

Community Services Officer  2 1   1 

Environmental Health Officer 1  1    

General Inspector 1  1    

Library Manager  1 1    

Library Assistant  2  2   

Waste Management Officer 4  4    

Community Services Total 7 6 9 2 1 1 

       

Infrastructure and Engineering 

Services 

      

Manager Infrastructure and         

Engineering Services 

1  1   1 

Infrastructure Co-ordinator  1 1    

Works Supervisor 1  1    

Asset Co-ordinator 1  1    

Coastal Management Officer  1    1 

Horticulture Supervisor 1  1    

Senior Workshop Officer 1  1    

Horticulture Officer 2 1 3    

Maintenance and Construction 13  13    

Infrastructure and Engineering 

Services Total 

20 3 21   2 

       

Overall Totals 36 19 40 3 3 7 
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District Council of Mallala 

The District Council of Mallala, located within the northern segment of the Outer Metropolitan 

Area of Adelaide, is within 45 minutes travelling distance to the city, with dual lane highway 

access.  The District is also gateway to the northern parts of the State for those travelling 

from Adelaide along Highway One. 

The District covers an area of 926km2, with a diverse topography, from gently undulating 

plains in the east, to the floodplains of the Light and Gawler Rivers, extending to the low 

lying coastal wetlands adjacent the Gulf St Vincent in the west. 

Most of the Council area is rural in nature and agriculture is the predominant land use.  The 

major urban towns of the District are Two Wells, Mallala and Dublin, all with a distinct coun-

try township character.  These towns provide service centres for the rural hinterland and are 

increasingly becoming commuter settlements for employment in nearby Adelaide.  There are 

also several coastal townships in the District Council area, the main ones being Thompson 

Beach, Parham and Middle Beach.   

The Council area has experienced strong population growth in both townships and rural liv-

ing areas over the last 10 years.  This is expected to continue, particularly in the southern 

part of the district, with advantages of easy access to Adelaide, employment options in the 

northern suburbs and affordable housing.  The total population is currently estimated to be 

around 8,365 people.  The District Council area also has unique opportunities for people 

wishing to purchase properties for rural and coastal living. 

The regional economy continues to grow, and growth in the services and transport sectors is 

also contributing to population growth.  Australian Bureau of Statistics population projections 

show continued strong growth over the next 10 years with a possible population of up to 

11,535 people by 2016. 

About Our District 

The Mallala area was originally 

inhabited by the Kaurna people 

and takes its name from a cor-

ruption of the Aboriginal word 

‘madlola’, or ‘place of the 

ground frog’. 

The first white settlement dates 

back to 1839 when the govern-

ment began allotting large 

tracts of surveyed land to pas-

toralists who farmed mostly 

grain and sheep.   

Today, employment generated 

within the District is still 

largely focused around farm-

ing pursuits—stock grazing 

and broadacre cropping.  Inten-

sive animal keeping, horticul-

ture industries and supporting 

service sectors are also major 

employment providers. 
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 Elector Representation 

National Competition Policy 

The following table provides details of electors per Council Ward, elector ratio and quota 

variance of each Ward as at July 2009 and indicated in the C L Rowe & Associates Report: 

Ward   Councillors  Electors Ratio  % Variance 

Dublin   2  1,518  1:759   +6.9 

Mallala  2  1,530  1:765   +7.8 

Two Wells  3  2,104  1:701   -1.3 

Lewiston  4  2,660  1:685   -6.3 

Total        11  7,812          -      - 

Average  -     -  1:710       - 

 

 

Sections 26 and 33 of the Local Government Act 1999 outline the need to ensure fair repre-

sentation while avoiding over representation in comparison to other similar sized Councils.  

The report found that the District Council of Mallala representation per elector was high in 

comparison to other Councils as indicated in the following table: 

Council       Councillors  Electors  Ratio 

Naracoorte / Lucindale   10  6,910   1:691 

Mallala     11  7,812   1:710 

Loxton Waikerie    12  9,165   1:763 

Grant          9  7,131   1:792 

Berri Barmera    10  8,103   1:810 

Clare & Gilbert Valleys       9  7,795   1:866 

Renmark Paringa        8  7,158   1:894 

Section 12(4) of the Local Government Act 1999 requires Council to undertake a review of 

all aspects of its composition and the division (or potential division) of the Council area into 

Wards. This review must be completed at least every eight (8) years.  

The Electoral Commission SA directed that Councils conduct a review in 2009 to ensure fair 

and equitable representation prior to the 2010 Local Government elections.  

In accordance with Section 12(4) and Section 12(8)(a) of the Local Government Act 1999 

Council commenced its Elector Representation Review, the initial six (6) week public consul-

tation concluded on 31 July with Council receiving no submissions. Council ratified at its 

August 17 2009 meeting to conduct additional public consultation to raise awareness. 

As a result of its public consultation and legislative requirements Council resolved:  

- The Principal Member of Council continue to be a Chairperson elected by Council and 

the office continue to bear the title of Mayor pursuant to Section 51 of the Act, 

- The Council continue to be divided into four (4) Wards with its current structure, 

- The Wards be identified as Dublin (Ward 1), Mallala (Ward 2), Two Wells (Ward 3), 

and Lewiston (Ward 4), 

- Council continue to comprise eleven (11) Councillors, and 

- Not to introduce Area Councillors in addition to Ward Councillors. 

Significant Business Action 

Council undertook no significant business activities in either category for the   financial year, 

nor was any in-house tendering undertaken. 
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District Council of Mallala 

Meeting Attendance 

 Councillor     Ordinary  Special      Attendance   

     Meetings    Meetings  Record  

      

Joe Daniele                           10   2    12 

Rudi Fabrici    11   1    12 

Tony Flaherty   10   3    13 

Yvonne Howard   12   3    15 

Steve Jones    11   2    13 

Terry Keen    11   2    13 

Steve Kennedy   10   1    11 

Duncan Kennington   10   3    13 

Anne Picard    11   1    12 

Marcus Strudwicke   11   3    14 

Tom Summerton   11   2    13 

 

Elected Members Training & Development 

Council provides an annual budget to its Elected Members to facilitate training and develop-

ment to assist them with their core functions and responsibilities as public figures. Elected 

members are able to attend conferences, seminars, and training to keep them informed of 

local and regional developments and legislative requirements associated with their roles. 

During the 2008 / 2009 period a number of elected members took the opportunity to at-

tend specific training and development: 

- LGA Residential Seminars – LGA, 

- LGA AGM, 

- Introduction to Microsoft Outlook  - WEA, 

- Using a Personal Computer – WEA. 

As part of Council Information Sessions elected members were exposed to a range of guest 

speakers from legal, financial, transport and development fields including members of the 

LGA who presented on local, regional and state issues affecting Council. 

Elected Members Information 
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Council Office: (Registered office & principal place of business) 

   2a Wasleys Road, 

   Mallala  5502 (office) 

Office Hours (Monday to Friday)    

  9:00am - 5:00pm 

Postal Address: 

  PO Box 18  Mallala  5502 

Telephone: 8527 0200 

Fax:  8527 2242 

Email Address:      

  info@mallala.sa.gov.au 

Web Address: 

  www.mallala.sa.gov.au 

Population as at 30 June 2009: 

Area of Council: 926.7sq km 

Number of Rateable Assessments:   4177 

Number of Electors:   

State Roll:           5,232  

Council Roll:         2,067  

Total Electors:      7,299 

Total Population:   8,365 

Council Synopsis 

District Map with Ward Boundaries 
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District Council of Mallala 

‘The Rockies’ Reserve,  
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Mayor:  
Marcus Strudwicke  
Telephone 8527 2046 

Email:  
 email@strudwicke.com 

 

Elected Members  

Deputy Mayor: 
Yvonne Howard   
Telephone 8527 2020 

Email 
 pyhoward6@bigpond.com 
 

 

Dublin Ward 

Cr Steve Jones 

 
C/- Post Office 
Lower Light 5501 

Cr Terry-Anne Keen 

 
PO Box 118 

Dublin 5501 

Mallala Ward 

Cr Rudi Fabrici  

 
15 Hancock Road 

Lewiston 5501 

Lewiston Ward 

Cr Anne Picard 

 
PO Box 581 

Virginia 5120 

Cr Yvonne Howard 

 
 
3 Irish Street 
Mallala  5502 

 

Cr Duncan Kennington 

 
290 Hayman Road 

Lewiston 5501 

Cr Tom Summerton 

 
1 Aunger Road 

Lewiston 5501 

Two Wells Ward 

Cr Steve Kennedy 

 
45 Gawler Road 

Two Wells  5501 

Cr Joe Daniele 

 
8 Old Port Wakefield Road 
Two Wells  5501 

Cr Tony Flaherty (OAM) 

 
5 Germantown Road 
Two Wells 5501 

Cr Marcus Strudwicke 

 
4 Dublin Road 

Mallala  5502 
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District Council of Mallala 

Chief  Executive Officer 

—Charles Mansueto 

Salary: $134,544pa - Commenced 10 August 2009  

(5 year contract expires August 2014) 

Superannuation as per SA Superannuation 9% and Local Govern-

ment Acts 

Fully maintained vehicle for private use 

Limited private use of mobile telephone 

Manager Corporate Services and Finance 

—Mark Lague  (1 - 24 July 2009)  Salary: $83,034  

Finance Manager—Lyndon Prior 

18 August 2009 - 8 June 2010)  Salary: $80,275                            

Superannuation as per SA Superannuation 9% and Local Govern-

ment Acts 

Fully maintained vehicle for private use 

Limited private use of mobile telephone 

Manager Environment and Development Services     

—Henri Mueller 

Salary: $89,155  

(5 year contract expires September 2013) 

Superannuation as per SA Superannuation 9% and Local Govern-

ment Acts 

Fully maintained vehicle for private use 

Limited private use of mobile telephone 

Manager, Infrastructure & Engineering Services 

—John Tillack  

Salary: $89,155  

(5-year contract expires September 2013)  

Superannuation as per SA Superannuation 9% and Local Gov-

ernment Acts 

Fully maintained vehicle for private use 

Limited private use of mobile telephone 

Manager, Community Services 

—Stephen Bateman 

Salary:  $83,034 

Superannuation as per SA Superannuation 9% and Local Gov-

ernment Acts 

Fully maintained vehicle for private use 

Limited private use of mobile telephone 

NB: The preceding information reflects the number of Senior Executive Officers, together 

with information on allowances, bonuses and benefits, as part of a salary package.  This 

information relates to the South Australian Municipal Salaried Officers Award and   

Council's Employee Relations Agreement 2009. 

Senior Management Team 

Council continues to be an 

Equal Opportunity employer 

seeking to employ a workforce 

free of discrimination where 

employees are provided with the 

opportunity to progress profes-

sional and personally where 

opportunities present.  
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The Annual Business Plan has been prepared to deliver the following Council objectives for 

the year ending 30 June 2011. 

Proposals for 2010 - 2011 

Outcome  

(SP#) 
Performance 

1.4 Construct a playground in the Lewiston Ward 

1.4 
Conduct quarterly safety inspections and maintain existing playgrounds to ex-

ceed minimum legislative safety requirements 

1.4 Maintain existing trails and construct approved trails to meet current guidelines 

2.1 Promote the area potential for economic growth 

2.2 
Identify hard and soft infrastructure requirements for Two Wells existing and 

future growth area 

2.2 Highlight infrastructure issues at regional planning forums 

2.2 
Introduce a Developer Contribution Scheme for the provision of community in-

frastructure in the new growth area and within the town centre of Two Wells 

2.2 
Facilitate the provision of optic fibre for broadband internet access to new 

growth areas North of Two Wells 

2.3 Develop economic strategies to attract investment in the District 

2.3 Lead the implementation of the Horticultural Blue Print 

3.1 Review Council’s Community Land Management Plans 

3.2 
Continue to plan the introduction of Community Wastewater Management Sys-

tems to the Mallala and Two Wells Townships 

3.4 Continue to plan and implement the closure of the Mallala Land-fill Site 

3.9 Source funding for the continued renovation of the Two Wells Public Library 

3.10 
Introduce a new Council Office to the Two Wells township providing greater ser-

vice to the wider community 

3.10 
Continue to liaise with community groups in the development and securing of 

leasing agreements over council assets 

3.10 
Continue to maintain and enhance Council building assets utilised by the public 

by introducing a formal building management plan  

3.10 
Continue to develop Council’s Asset Management Plans relating to roads, land 

and buildings 

4.1 Continue to work with the LGA and Government Departments 

4.1 
Develop a comprehensive Elected Members training plan in conjunction with 

Light Regional Council 

4.1 
Continue to develop Governance procedures, policies and practices in-line with   

legislative requirements and best practice 

4.1 Develop a formal Business Continuity  

4.1 Plan in consultation with the LGA 

4.3 
Develop Council’s consultation and communication practices with the community 

and internally provide a well informed community and workforce 

4.4 

Develop Council’s Customer Service practices internally and externally providing 

prompt and accurate information and service to the community, staff and 

elected members implementing continuous improvement 

4.5 

Utilising LGA’s Good Governance Plan and Reform Audit process to implement 

best practice policies, procedures and practices relating to risk and financial 

matters 
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District Council of Mallala 

All Local Government land became classified as Community Land when the Local Govern-

ment Act 1999 came into effect from 1st January 2000. 

Register of Community Land 

Council has prepared a Register of Community Land containing (but not limited to) the 

following information: 

Legal description and location of the land 

Commonly known name of land (if applicable) 

The area of the land 

The owner of the land – while predominately this will be Council there are several par-

cels of land owned by the Crown but under Council’s Care and Control. 

Copies of Community Land Management Plans under the following categories: 

Management Plan 1 - Undeveloped Open Space/Reserves with Minor Improvements 

Management Plan 2  -  Cemeteries 

Management Plan 3   -  Port Parham Sports and Social Club 

Management Plan 4   -  Formal Gardens 

Management Plan 5   -  Council Parks – Major Improvements 

Management Plan 6   -  Stormwater Management 

Management Plan 7   -  Community Buildings 

Management Plan 8   -  Sports / Recreation Facilities 

Management Plan 9   -  Two Wells Car Park Land 

Management Plan 10  -  Historic Wells Reserve 

Management Plan 11  -  Mallala Museum Gardens 

Council identified through its improved asset management practices that each Community 

Land Management Plan required review and this process is due to commence in 2011. 

Council’s Register of Community Land is available for public inspection at the Council Office 

at 2a Wasleys Road, Mallala during ordinary office hours. 

Community Land 

Mallala Historical Museum 
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 Organisation Chart 
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District Council of Mallala 
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Cr S M Strudwicke  

Councillor Allowance  11,299.00 

Councillor Travel Reimbursement    Nil 

Total payments for 2009-2010 11,299.00 

  

Cr Y L Howard  

Councillor Allowance 9,451.41 

Councillor Travel Reimbursement Nil 

Council Development Assessment Panel 3,200.00 

Total payments for 2009-2010 12,651.41 

  

Cr T A Keen  

Councillor Allowance 6,301.36 

Councillor Travel Reimbursement Nil 

Total payments for 2009-2010 6,301.36 

  

Cr S J Kennedy  

Councillor Allowance 6,301.36 

Councillor Travel Reimbursement Nil 

Total payments for 2009–2010 6,301.36 

Elected Members Expenses & Allowances         
Re-imbursement of Expenses, Facilities and Support 

The District Council of Mallala ensures that the reimbursement of expenses and the provision of 

allowances, facilities and support to the Elected Members is accountable, transparent and in ac-

cordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and associated regulations. 

Allowances 

Section 76 of the Local Government Act 1999 and Regulation 4 prescribe that all Elected Mem-

bers are entitled to receive an allowance. The Council, within the limits imposed by the Regula-

tions, sets this allowance annually.  The allowance is to help cover the cost of performing and 

discharging their official functions and duties. 

 

Payments made to Councillors      

Total payments (includes travel allowance) made to Councillors for the period 1 July 2009 to 30 

June 2010 are as follows:  

Position  
Allowances paid July 

2009  to June 2010 

Mayor  $12,500.00 

Deputy Mayor  $  9,375.00 

Elected Members  $  6,250.00 

Presiding Members of  Council Section 41 Committees  $  9,375.00 
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District Council of Mallala 

 

Cr P M N Daniele  

Councillor Allowances 5,780.52 

Councillor Travel Reimbursement 1,272.24 

Council Development Assessment Panel  3,200. 

Total payments for 2009-2010 10,252.76 

  

Cr B J Summerton  

Councillor Allowance  6,200.91 

Councillor Travel Reimbursement 1,097.34 

Total payments for 2009-2010 7,298.25 

  

Cr S E Jones   

Councillor Allowance  6,301.36 

Councillor Travel Reimbursement Nil 

Total payments for 2009-2010 6,301.36 

  

Cr D Kennington  

Councillor Allowance  6,301.36 

Councillor Travel Reimbursement 1,253.95 

Total payments for 2009-2010 7,555.31 

  

Cr A Picard  

Councillor Allowance  6,301.36 

Councillor Travel Reimbursement 1,591.59 

Total of payments for 2009-2010 7,892.95 

  

Cr A J Flaherty (OAM)  

Councillor Allowance  8,905.51 

Councillor Travel Reimbursement 

Phone and Internet Allowance 

3,949.90 

850.00 

Total of payments for 2009-2010 13,705.41 

  

Cr R J Fabrici  

Councillor Allowance  8,281.25 

Councillor Travel Reimbursement 

Council Development Assessment Panel  

2,758.89 

2,800.00 

Total of payments for 2009-2010 13,440.14 

Total payments to Councillors for 2009-2010 $102,999.31 
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Key Department Services 

The Infrastructure and Engineering Services Department provides services to the community both 

directly and through the provision of infrastructure.  Our services include: 

· Construction, maintenance and management of: 

o Transport facilities (roads, bridges, culverts and footpaths) 

o Stormwater systems (under ground and open drains and associated pumping 

systems) 

o Flood mitigation, preparation, response and recovery 

o Parks, gardens and reserves 

· Cemetery operations 

· Public conveniences 

· Production of road making materials 

· Plant and Depot operations 

  

Infrastructure and Engineering Services 



                                                                                                                                                  21 

District Council of Mallala 

Middle Beach Boat Ramp 

After 15 years of community consultation the new boat ramp finally became a reality.  Jointly 

funded by grants form the Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry, the South Austra-

lian Boating Facilities Advisory Committee and Council, the $350,000 project was constructed 

by Watpac Civil Infrastructure in April and May 2010. 

Major projects and works included: 

Road Construction 

Construction and sealing of Bailey Road East and Garden Avenue (northern section) at Two 

Wells.  Project cost $308,000. 

Streetscapes 

Finalisation of the Dublin Streetscape Project (Phase 3) on Old Port Wakefield Road, Dublin – 

project cost $450,000.  Phase 3 costs were $150,000. 

Left to right: Theo Rapp Watpac Civil Infrastructure Pty Ltd; Cr Marcus Strudwicke, Mayor of DC Mallala; Malcolm 

Frost, member Foreshore Advisory Committee; Barbara Reid, Chairman Foreshore Advisory Committee; and John 

Drexel member Foreshore Advisory Committee 
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 Other Projects 

2 Wasleys Road in Mallala was converted from a vacant allotment into an attractive commu-

nity asset already proving popular with locals and visitors alike.  The brick wall in the fore-

ground replicates the architecture of the original building on the site and the stone used in the 

construction was recovered from that building. 

 

Reconstruction of 6000 metres of road shoulders on Dawkins and Bethesda Roads in Lewiston.  

Construction of new footpaths in Redbanks Road, Mallala and Chapman Street, Two Wells at a 

cost of $21,000. 

Installation of a large number of road signs to improve information for the community, or to 

replace those that were no longer serviceable; or were damaged or stolen by vandals. 

 

 

 

 

Patrol grading of all formed un-

sealed roads 
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 Sealed Roads 

Resealing of 45,000m2 of sealed roads - $190,000.  Roads or sections of roads resealed 

were: 

Equipment/Plant Purchases 

Council purchased the following major equipment during 2009/10: 

· Waste/Recycling Collection Vehicle– replacement 

· Utility (5) –4 replacements, 1 new (for asset management) 

· Chipper – replacement 

· Truck and crane combination – replacement 

Out of the Ordinary 

Council assisted the South Australian Museum to recover the skeleton of a rare fin whale 

that washed up on the foreshore at Webb Beach in early October 2009.  Council provided 

project management, traffic management and logistic support to the operation which took 

approximately one week to complete. 

Two Wells Mallala Long Plains Barabba Lewiston  

Garden Avenue Owen Road Hallion Road Barabba Road Aunger Road 

Johns Road  Powerline Road  Germantown Road 

  Ridley Road  Gilks Road 

Unsealed Roads 

Selected sections of resheeting (new wear course of 100 mm of crushed limestone) on 17 

km of unsealed roads – Project Cost $410,000 

Two Wells Lewiston Mallala 

Sable Grove Dawkins Road Dublin Road 

Chestnut Lane   

Clydesdale Drive   

Kathleen Road   

Hayman Road   

Wilson Street   

Donaldson Road   

Elizabeth Street   
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 Environment and Development Services 

Key Department Services: 

  Policy Planning  

 Contraventions 

  Environment and Coastal 

  Building Assessment 

  Development Control 

The Environment and Development Services team comprises of five staff including: 
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This year saw the continuation of detailed planning in relation to the Two Wells and Mallala 

Townships, including the future plans for the Two Wells town centre, investigations into the 

future growth area to the north of Two Wells and progress on rezoning and transport struc-

ture planning for the Mallala Township.   

Council’s Better Development Plan Conversion Process was also progressed with preparation 

of a first draft development plan amendment. 

Council entered into a Heads of Agreement (HOA) with the Hickinbotham Group in relation to 

cooperation for establishing a major growth area to the north of Two Wells. The HOA en-

shrines co-operation between the parties on the investigations for growth, the negotiation of 

a Developer Agreement and the establishment of a Developer Contribution Scheme for the 

provision of future hard and soft infrastructure.  

Substantial progress was made in relation to the Light River flood mapping project and plan-

ning for the revised flood mapping of the Gawler River Flood plain.  

The level of information in coastal areas received a major boost with preparation of detailed 

digital elevation models of our coastal townships and settlements.   

In the meantime development activity was not at all subdued by the global financial crisis 

with the level of development applications not only sustained but also substantially increasing 

in value of development from previous years.  Several major land division applications in 

Lewiston and Two Wells and a major expansion of the D’Vine Ripe Horticulture development 

on Germantown Road were approved. 

Council maintained its obligations under its Building Inspection policy and the Building Fire 

Safety Authority maintained a vigilant approach to building fire safety issues.  Planning en-

forcement activity kept the pressure on illegal development and unsightly premises. 

Council’s urban design and planning projects under the State government Better Places for 

People Program were advanced during the year with the preparation of a revised master plan 

for the Two Wells towns Centre. The Dublin Township entry features were also revised in light 

of the Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure (DTEI) concerns. 

Two Wells Expansion Project 

Council entered into a milestone Heads of Agreement (HoA) with the Hickinbotham Group 

enshrining co-operative arrangements for the preparation of a master plan and subsequent 

Development Plan Amendment (DPA) giving effect to rezoning for major expansion to the 

north of the Two Wells Township.  The HoA also enshrines the party’s intentions to negotiate 

a developer agreement for the provision of infrastructure and the establishment of a devel-

oper contribution scheme to provide future services for the township. 

The expansion to the north of the town has also been incorporated by the State Government 

in the Greater Adelaide Plan. This expansion is being investigated as part of the Two Wells 

residential and Commercial Development Plan Amendment process. Whilst the investigations 

have progressed into infrastructure requirements and services much of the emphasis has 

been on mapping of the Light River flood plain and the investigations into the Two Wells 

Town   Centre redevelopment.   

Development Plan Amendments 

Council made progress toward the preparation of a number of Development Plan Amendment 

reports including the following: 

Better Development Plan Conversion DPA 

 Prepared first draft for Council consideration. This has been resourced by Council staff and 

Department of Planning and Local Government Staff as a joint project. 

Gawler River Flood Mitigation DPA 

 Completed Statement of Investigations and prepared draft policy. Project work undertaken 

by planning consultants with a joint steering committee comprising planning staff from the 

Town of Gawler, Light Regional Council, City of Playford and District Council of Mallala. 

Two Wells Residential and Commercial DPA 

 Investigations and preparation of master plan and report by the Hickinbotham Group for 

independent verification and inclusion in Statement of Investigations for the DPA. The DPA 

being prepared by Council’s planning consultants.  

Mallala Township DPA 

Incorporating rezoning for residential, commercial, light industrial and commercial bulk 

handling facilities and introduces a transport structure plan to establish a heavy vehicle 

bypass.  Completed agency consultation phase and undertook traffic impact assessment 

and additional investigations relating to bushfire issues as recommended by Agencies. 
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Urban design consultants were engaged to prepare desired future character statements and 

guidelines for the development of the town centre of Two Wells. Due to higher than expected 

growth targets established through the Greater Adelaide Plan, the original urban design 

framework required some revision. Subsequently, several additional options were prepared 

and further consultation with the community undertaken on the subject including ‘A Day in 

the Town’,  where a display was prepared and consultants were available to discuss the 

plans with community members.  Council endorsed the revision in Option 4, as shown 

above. 

Two Wells Town Centre Development 

Two Wells Town Centre Project—Option 4 
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Two Wells Town Centre Development 

Mission Statement 

Provide a safe, healthy and sustainable environment for 

our growing community, business and visitors, by pro-

viding quality services, infrastructure and facilities. 
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 Development Activity 

The total number of development applications for the period was 354 up on the previous year 

of 335. Value of Development grew considerably with $35 million worth of development as 

compared to $16 million the previous year. Interestingly it would appear that development 

trends have passed through a significant dip in 2007-8 and 2008-9 when only 337 applications 

valued at $23 Million and 335 applications valued at only $16 million respectively were re-

ceived. The 2009-10 financial period appears to be on an upward trend, but is still below the 

high growth years of 2004-5 and 2005-6 when 451 and 385 applications were received respec-

tively, as shown in the table below. 

Development Assessment 

As has been the case in recent years, development applications received by Council during the 

period were mostly for traditional type development, with the majority approved under dele-

gated authority. Dwellings, building extensions, sheds/garages, swimming pools and veran-

dahs / carports / pergolas were mostly approved by Council staff. Several larger development 

applications were also processed by Council throughout the year including significant land divi-

sion applications in Lewiston and Two Wells. 

The Lewiston and Two Wells areas were again the source of most development applications 

received by Council. Horse keeping and dog kennelling applications in the rural living zones 

were also received and processed. Development proposals in Thompson Beach, Middle Beach, 

Dublin and Parham were also approved. Council’s Settlement Zones and wider General Farm-

ing localities also experienced some development. 

Council Development Assessment Panel (CDAP) 

Eight meetings of Council’s Development Assessment Panel took place during the period, an 

increase of one from the previous year. The panel meets when required to consider public noti-

fication development applications where there has been representations (Category 2 and Cate-

gory 3), non-complying development applications, and applications being recommended for 

refusal. The panel may also be called to consider applicant compromise proposals resulting 

from appeals to the Environment Resources and Development Court.  

Applications Refused 

The following developments were refused by the panel: 

Dwelling addition within Flood Hazard Zone 2 of Gawler River Flood Plain Policy Area at Lewis-

ton; 

Shed within Flood Hazard Zone 3 of the Gawler River Flood Plain Policy Area. Being a non-

complying development no appeal rights were available to the applicant. 

Non-Complying Development 

The panel resolved to seek the concurrence of the Development Assessment Commission in 

respect to approving an application for a detached dwelling on an allotment less than 8 hec-

tares in area within the Gawler River Flood Plain Policy Area in the Horticulture Zone at Two 

Wells. The Commission concurred with the decision of the Panel. 

The panel also resolved to seek the concurrence of the Development Assessment Commission 

in respect to approving an application by the District Council of Mallala for the redevelopment 

of the existing Council Works Depot. Provisional Development Plan Consent was subsequently 

granted. 

Appeals/Compulsory Conferences 

An applicant appealed to the Environment, Resources and Development Court against the 

panel’s decision to refuse an application for a dwelling within Flood Hazard Zone 2 of the 

Gawler River Flood Plain Policy Area in Lewiston. Following additional information provided by 

the applicant the Panel agreed to the granting of Development Plan Consent by the Court prior 

to the matter proceeding to a full Court hearing. 

This figure includes $42m for a gas fired peaking power station 

Table 1: Development Applications and Value of Development 
  2004-5 2005-6 2006-7 2007-8 2008-9 2009-10 

Numbers 451 385 357 337 335 354 

Value (millions) $17.1 $18.5 $52.1(1) $23.6 $16 $35 
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Customer Satisfaction – Development Assessment 

A total of 338 customer survey forms were sent out with decision notifications for planning 

and building approval during the reporting period with a total of 30  completed and returned. 

The level of customer satisfaction with the service provided was very high, with only one 

exception.  Levels of satisfaction scored between 8 and 10 out of 10 and by far the highest 

number scored was 10 out of 10. The majority of feedback was very positive, helpful and 

encouraging to staff to maintain a high level of customer service. 

Coastal Townships and Settlements 

The Coastal Management Board have undertaken LYDAR surveys of our coastal townships 

and combined this with the one recently undertaken as part of the Light River flood mapping 

project to provide a complete coverage for all of the coastal townships and settlements in 

the Mallala District. From this digital elevation models (DEM) have been prepared for the 

coastal towns and settlements providing details of the terrain including levels to a high de-

gree of accuracy suitable for undertaking flood mapping for sea level rise and coastal storm 

surge inundation. 

An application for funding has been submitted to the NDRG and the Coastal Management 

Branch for $50,000 each to undertake much needed repairs to the Thompson Beach town-

ship levee banks.  

Public Notification Applications Approved 

The following developments were approved by the panel after public notification: 

Parking of truck and trailer at Lewiston. 

Variation to existing development authorization to remove existing Development Plan 

conditions relating to chemical spraying and vegetation buffers on a horticultural property 

at Two Wells. 

Keeping of 8 horses and associated facilities at Lewiston. 

Keeping of 22 horses and associated facilities at Reeves Plains. 

Temporary 80 metre high wind testing mast near Dublin. 

Expansion of existing major glasshouse development at Korunye. 

Building Inspection Policy 

A total of 102 inspections relating to Development Applications were performed during the 

financial year. There was 355 Development Applications received by Council, meaning ap-

proximately 29% of all applications were inspected thereby exceeding the 25% target speci-

fied in Council’s building inspection policy and was up 3% on the last financial year.   

From all inspections performed, the builder notified Council on 74  occasions (73%), up by 

7% on last year and 15% over the last two years. This would indicate that our office has 

succeeded at increasing the number of builders performing their mandatory obligation of 

notifying Council. Remaining inspections were random. Of the inspections performed, 87 

(85%) related to dwellings or dwelling additions, up by 10% on last year. This correlates 

with the additional notifications Council received through the financial year. Other applica-

tions inspected related to commercial, industrial and minor domestic structures. 

Building Fire Safety Authority 

Councils Building Fire Safety Authority, which consisted of Chris Wiltshire (Council officer), 

Peter Harmer (Building Surveyor) and Maurie Parker (proxy to Chief Fire Warden), continued 

to take an active role in monitoring public buildings. Seven inspections were performed by 

the Authority, with the majority being Council owned assets.  

Enforcement notices were not issued by the Authority during the financial year, however, a 

number of buildings that were continually monitored during this period did not comply with 

the Authority’s requirements.   

Subsequent action will be taken in the coming financial year, although some of the issues in 

relation to the buildings inspected were regarded as minor, the Building Fire Safety Authority 

took all matters seriously, enforcing the highest standards on all buildings inspected to en-

sure the safety of the public. 
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Dublin Entry Features 

Extract from Design Panels  

 

The Department for Transport Energy and Infrastructure (DTEI) did not support the original 

plan for the Dublin Entry Features and, as a result, the  plan was substantially revised.  A simi-

lar map theme and structural design to that of the original was maintained.  Instead of using a 

design based on a cutout from a road map showing Highway One, the latest version (above) 

represents the cutout from an actual topographic map extending from Gulf Saint Vincent and 

Thompson Beach to Dublin. The same symbols representing services within the town are still in 

use.  

The revised plans, supported by DTEI, were presented to the community at a workshop in the 

Dublin Institute where they were well received.  

Building Code and Legislative Changes 

During the last financial year there were some changes that occurred within the Building Code 

legislation as well as a new Minister’s Specification. Planning SA released Document SA A2.2 

which was a new Minister’s Specification dealing with certification of computer based engineer-

ing programmes. This was to ensure generic designs, such as those produced by roof truss 

manufacturers, are assessed against the provisions of Regulation 88 of the Development Regu-

lations (2008) detailing the requirements of an independent check from an accredited engi-

neer. The Building Code of Australia (BCA) 2010 was released in May this year with amend-

ments to the  Energy efficiency requirements. New dwellings were to be upgraded from five 

star ratings to six star ratings. These changes however are only to be enforced in the next 

financial year. Australian Standard 3959- Construction of buildings in bushfire prone areas was 

amended to include a new rating system. It upgraded the number of bush fire protection levels 

from four to six, with the highest levels requiring extreme protection to the walls and roof. The 

changes were a result of the Black Saturday bushfires in Victoria and were implemented in the 

BCA 2010. 

The 2009-10 financial year also saw changes to the CFS (Country Fire Service) in both office 

structure and assessment methods. As a result, new ideas from new people meant assessment 

on farm buildings were more stringent than in the past. Application relating to hay sheds in 

particular required additional methods of protection relating to pump sets, all weather roads, 

static water tank volume, and booster systems. Any deviation from these requirements needed 

strict approval from the CFS. 
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One major industrial development was commenced in the District Council of Mallala. This was 

the second stage of the glasshouse development located on Germantown Road. Because the 

addition replicated the existing glasshouse already approved, the assessment performed by 

the private certifier was a simple assessment. At present, the frame is up with work to be 

completed by the end of this financial year. 

Enforcement of the Development Act 1993 

The table below indicates some of the planning contraventions that have been investigated 

and the action taken during this period. Planning contraventions are categorized under differ-

ent headings. They can be anything from an illegal land use, illegal structure or development, 

or not carrying out an approval in accordance with planning conditions imposed on the devel-

opment. 

Planning contraventions take up considerable resources, can be extremely time consuming 

and are often complex in nature. The resources required in the resolution of a complex plan-

ning contravention in the Environment Resources and Development (ERD) Court are costly 

and staff endeavor to resolve matters before they reach the Court.  

Sometimes no further action is required where an investigation reveals that the contraven-

tion is resolved by negotiation, or there is no substance to the allegation i.e. the suspected 

illegal development may have a development approval or existing use rights. 

As with all illegal activity there is a due process, which allows for property owners or those 

responsible for an illegal development to lodge a Development Application with Council.  

Planning contraventions are carried out using procedures that are recognised state wide by 

all councils and Planning SA.  

Development Act Contraventions 

Contravention Location Action Taken Result 

Illegal land use (storage of      

materials) 

Korunye ERD Court Ongoing 

Illegal land use (operating a   

business) 

Two Wells Liaison with Development Assess-

ment Commission (DAC) 

Monitoring 

of site 

Illegal development (structures 

and dam 

Two Wells Section 84 (Development Act 1984) DA lodged 

Illegal development (land fill) Lewiston Liaison with Environment Protection 

Authority (EPA) & DAC  

EPA action 

on-going 

Illegal land use (storage of   

vehicles) 

Lewiston Negotiation Monitoring 

of site 

Illegal land use (structure and 

living in motor home) 

Thompson 

Beach 

Negotiation DA lodged 

Illegal development (shed con-

version) 

Reeves 

Plains 

Negotiation Ongoing 

Illegal land use (truck parking) Lewiston Investigation Monitoring 

of site 

Illegal development (structure) Lewiston Investigation No further 

action  

Illegal land use (horse keeping) Lewiston Investigation and negotiation Ongoing 

Illegal land use (horse keeping) Two Wells Section 84 Notice (Development Act 

1983) 

Ongoing 

Illegal land use (dog keeping) Lewiston Negotiation DA lodged 

Illegal land use (truck depot) Two Wells  Investigation, research and legal 

advice 

No further 

action 

Illegal development (Shed for 

business use) 

Two Wells Negotiation Monitoring 

of site 
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Light River, Salt Creek, and Templers Creek Flood Mapping Project 

Considerable progress was made in relation to the flood mapping project.   Hydrological con-

sultants, Australian Water Environments (AWE), were engaged to undertake the work and a 

steering group comprising representatives from the funding partners—Stormwater Management 

Authority (SMA), the Natural Disaster Mitigation Resilience Program (NDRG), the Hickinbotham 

Group, and the Mallala Council.  

A hydraulic assessment and final report and a draft hydrological study report were prepared. A 

first draft flood map of the 1:100 year Average Return Interval Flood of the Light River, Tem-

plars Creek and Salt Creek has been prepared based on the findings of the first draft hydrologi-

cal study report pictured below. 
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Key Departmental Services: 

Food Act 

Environment Protection Act 

Public and Environmental Health Act 

Local Government Act 

Dog and Cat Management Act 

Library Management 

Fleet Management 

Community Welfare / Development 

The Community Services Team comprises of twelve staff including: 

Community Services   
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 Food 

Council continues to undertake its legal responsibilities under the provisions of the Food Act 

2001 with the resources available.  During the 12 month period to 30 June 2010 there were 70 

food premises inspected on a regular basis within the District.   

Proprietors are regularly informed of changes to food legislation best practice standards and 

relevant health warnings regarding food requirements.  

Food safety and hygiene legislative information is distributed to all food business, community 

and charitable organisations in the Council region.  

During the reporting period, four (4) food complaints were received involving food safety. 

Complaints were followed up with inspections and matters involving food safety were resolved 

without further action. 

There are currently three (3) businesses (one community hospital and two child care facilities) 

that prepare food for vulnerable persons. These facilities are independently audited to comply 

with the requirements of the Food Act although the DCM (EHO) still retains enforcement pow-

ers relating to any non-compliance of these premises. 

The Council Website has recently been upgraded and information is available relating to the 

relevant legislation and codes, food business notification, food handler training and links to 

other food related information. 

Public and Environmental Health 

The Public and Environmental Health Act 1987, requires local government to take responsibility 

in the administration of public health issues such as sanitation, control of vectors, the preven-

tion and control of diseases in its own locality and investigation of health complaints.  Local 

Government must ensure that guidelines and standards, pursuant to this act, are adopted and 

enforced to areas such as future development, community concerns and health promotion. 

There are five (5) registered hairdressing / beauty premises within the Council area and one 

swimming pool; all were inspected during the reporting period. 

During the 2009-2010 financial year a total of 20 complaints were investigated concerning 

various public health issues.  These included preventing insanitary conditions on premises, 

controlling offensive activities, providing adequate sanitation and failed septic tanks. 

High risk manufactured water systems (cooling tower and warm water supply) were inspected 

and independently audited under the Public and Environmental Health (Legionella) Regulations 

2008 to ensure proper maintenance of the systems and to minimise the incidence of legionello-

sis. 

Disease Surveillance 

Notifiable diseases can be associated with a variety of sources, including preparation and con-

sumption of food; access to swimming pools; and cooling towers / warm water handling sys-

tems and handling of potting soil etc.  

Council liaises with The Communicable Disease Control Branch and maintains Communicable 

Disease surveillance within the District to help prevent the transmission of infectious diseases. 

This is achieved by undertaking Interviews and conducting investigations when necessary to 

determine the source of an illness and to establish links between similar cases.  

There was one (1) disease notification which required investigation during this reporting pe-

riod. 

Vector Control 

Council’s Public and Environmental Health Section regularly liaise with the Department of 

Health Services regarding monitoring and controlling mosquitoes. Samples of mosquito larvae 

and adults are collected, identified and recorded for density determination and population 

monitoring.  Due to the large areas of coastal mangroves, control of mosquitoes in this area is 

not practical or viable and residents of these areas are encouraged to be aware of the preven-

tative measures they can take.  Information relating to this is available on the Council Website. 

European Wasps 

Council is a contributor to the European Wasp Equalisation Fund. During the reporting period 

there were no European Wasp Nests either identified or destroyed. Residents are encouraged 

to report Wasp sightings, Council supplies information and instructions of how to locate the 

nest.  When the nest is located, arrangements are made to have the nest destroyed by a li-

censed pest controller at no cost to the ratepayer. Further information is also available on 

Councils website. 
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On-site Waste Water Disposal 

Due to the high proportion of non-sewered properties in the District, wastewater system 

approvals continue to be a major proportion of compliance under the Act with the receipt of 

112 applications for installation or alteration of wastewater systems and 142 inspections 

conducted in the reporting period.   

During this period there was one (1) unauthorised installation which was removed and re-

placed by an authorised plumber in compliance with the act. 

Various types of systems are approved in the area, ranging from a conventional system, 

with alternating trenches, to the more technically advanced Aerobic Waste Treatment Plants 

and Sand Filter Systems, as well as a Septic Tank Effluent Disposal (STED) Scheme at Middle 

Beach. 

During the reporting period there were two (2) community consultation evenings held at 

both Mallala and Two Wells, where the residents in the area were given an opportunity to be 

informed and provide feedback regarding the proposed Community Waste Management Sys-

tem for the townships.  With the initial planning and surveying phase complete, the design 

and technical aspects of the system are progressing.  The provision of a CWMS was origi-

nally instigated due to the large amount of failed systems and the inability for residents to 

install new effluent disposal systems due to either the small size of the allotments or the 

total build up of the allotment with the residents pumping raw untreated effluent onto their 

lawns and yards.  Further analysis and community consultation will occur as part of the on-

going assment of CWMS for Two Wells and Mallala.   

Chemical Drum Program 

Council continues to participate in the DrumMuster collection program which provides a farm 

chemical metal drum crushing and plastic container recycling service to farmers and or-

chardist in the area.  With on-going support from the farming community, approximately 

2744 containers were collected and recycled during the current period.  

Council is investigating the creation of a permanent enclosure to store containers until pick 

up by recyclers and the possibility of a monthly collection program to provide a better ser-

vice to the rural community. 

Celebrations and Events 

This year marked the 75th anniversary of the District Council of Mallala. Community Services 

staff event managed a week of festivities held during SA HistoryWeek which included events 

by Dublin History Group and the Mallala & Districts Historical Committee. The Council hosted 

the following events; opening of the Mallala Gazebo, a bus tour of the District, official hand-

over of the Echo newsletter to the Plains Producer, a day in the town – Two Wells develop-

ment community consultation, and finished with a gala dinner reuniting former staff and 

Councillors. 

Council organised yet another successful Australia Day Ceremony, this year inviting newly 

inducted citizen, Emma Ellis to sing the national anthem and included Young Citizen of the 

Year, Angus Budjea’s choir. Seven (7) new citizens were inducted at various ceremonies 

throughout the year. 

Council participated in Anzac Day and Remembrance Day ceremonies with the provision of 

wreaths for each service.   

As part of the 2010 National Volunteer Week, Council worked in conjunction with Town of 

Gawler staff again providing a free movie day with around 60 volunteers attending from the 

District Council of Mallala. This continues to be a successful day. Recognition and support 

provided to volunteers has increased and this will continue.  

Council continues to provide vital support for events held both regionally and within the Dis-

trict, facilitating greater pride in the community.  

Funding 

Funding information was provided to the District’s community and sporting groups, with 

grant writing workshops.  The workshops were held throughout the year facilitated by the 

Yorke Regional Development Board up until December 2009 and subsequently by the RDA 

Barossa until 30 June 2010. The workshops were well received with several groups reporting 

an increase in successful grant applications and will continue into the future.  

Working in collaboration with management, staff submitted and managed RCLIP funding 

applications and projects. 

Council’s Community Partnerships Funding Programme moved into its eighth year, allocating 

$50,000 towards community projects including individual sports and recreational pursuits. 
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 Community 

Council’s Community Officers continue to boost the link between Council and the community.   

Community Engagement and Education 

Public consultation was initiated with by-law workshops on animal management undertaken in 

Mallala and Two Wells, further engaging the community in Council decision making.  

Waste Management and Community Service staff began presentations at schools and service 

clubs within the District, regarding environment and waste management. 

Council participated in the SA Water ‘Swap’n’Save’ showerhead exchange program, with resi-

dents in the Council area wencouraged to exchange their current showerhead for a free high 

water efficiency model. 

Around 190 showerheads were exchanged and, based on identified household members, this 

calculated water savings of 6,126,525** litres water per annum enabling residents of the Dis-

trict Council of Mallala to reduce reliance on the River Murray. 

** Calculations based on standard showerhead flow rate of 18 litres per minute and a 3 star 

showerhead flow rate of 9 litres per minute, for one 5 minute shower per day per person. 

Regional Development 

Regional Development Boards were closed making way for the new tri- government Regional 

Development Australia (RDA).  Council is now aligned with RDA Barossa, ending its partnership 

with the Yorke Regional Development Board. The Adelaide Plains Marketing Committee went 

into a 12 month recess while the new RDA’s were established and recently voted to continue 

the committee with a collaborative approach from both RDA Barossa and Yorke-Mid North. In 

the meantime the Adelaide Plains Emu Awards continued to showcase the success of individu-

als and communities across the plains.  

Members of Community Services staff participated in the Local Government Managers Chal-

lenge, as the inaugural Mallala Council Team, faring well. 

Community Officers attended a Regional Tourism Growth Plan workshop as we branch into 

tourism opportunities in the region. 

Community Housing 

After informed consideration, the Mallala & Districts Homes Committee entered into a lease 

agreement with Barossa & Districts Housing Association (BDHA) to manage the units at Dun-

stan Court Mallala. The handover has been managed respectfully between Council’s Commu-

nity Officers and BDHA ensuring consideration of the current residents at all times. While BDHA 

process applications for unit occupation, the committee has set criteria specific to tenants. All 

units are currently tenanted.  

Online Customer Service Centre 

A fresh new look has been given to the District Council of Mallala website, providing a facelift 

that is more contemporary and making navigation of the site much easier. 

Council staff worked closely with the web designers, ‘Secure e-Host’, to ensure the best possi-

ble results. Although the basic information previously included remains, a more specific con-

tent structure has been implemented, with the website appearance undergoing a major re-

vamp.    

The home page now contains a series of images illustrating some of the iconic areas of the 

District. 

Youth Engagement 

Council was one of 18 successful organisations Australia wide to be granted funding through 

the ‘DrinkWise’ program. Funding was sought to host a youth drink driving forum in conjunc-

tion with Wakefield Regional Council. Around 55 participants from Adelaide Plains affiliated 

football and netball clubs attended the seminar held in the Two Wells Community Centre. 

Speakers included SAPOL, funeral directors, a young man who became a paraplegic after a 

drink drive incident and a poignant short film demonstrating the aftermath of a fatal motor 

vehicle accident. Funding was used to provide free bus travel, a light meal, drinks, hall hire 

and speakers fees. 

Waste Management 

Council operates and manages an alternating domestic waste and recycling collection that is 

offered to all residents throughout the District. Each residential property is provided with a 

240 litre MGB for recycling purposes. Council collects approximately 24 tonnes of recyclables 

per fortnight, which equates to an average of 10.65 kilograms per household.   
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The  Council owned landfill closed in July 2010 and is entering into a closure plan in accor-

dance with EPA guidelines. 

Council is committed to reducing the amount of waste to landfill.  Domestic waste and 

recyclables are transported either to the Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority 

(NAWMA), or Inkerman, to be further sorted and processed. The waste collection tonnage 

statistics for the reporting period are provided below:                                                    

Year 2009/2010 

Waste  . . . . . . . . . . . 1385 tonnes 

Recycling  . . . . . . . . . .622 tonnes 

Total  . . . . . . . . . . . .  2007 tonnes 

Council is committed to reducing waste to landfill and its dedicated Waste Management 

Unit is responsible for the collection and disposal of all waste, including resource recovery 

programs. 

Resource Recovery Facility 

Council’s successful grant application has allowed for the construction and development of 

a specifically designed undercover sorting facility for recovery of recyclable materials from 

the Two Wells transfer station, illegally dumped rubbish and residential general trailer 

waste.  

The sorting and diversion of the material has significantly reduced the amount of waste to 

landfill. 

The facility has been upgraded with the provision of an air conditioned office and toilet/

shower facilities for staff. 

Food Waste/Green Organics Pilot 

Success of the trial has seen an increase in the diversion of waste from landfill and at the 

same time recovers food waste and green organics for processing into nutrient rich com-

post. 

Council will continue with a food waste/green organic collection for the town ships of Mal-

lala, Two Wells and Dublin. 

To date over 80 tonnes of organics have been processed and recycled as compost with a 

relatively low contamination rate of approximately 10%. 

Illegal Dumping  

The issue of illegal dumping is a major concern.  Council removed approximately 437 loads 

of illegally dumped waste during the reporting period, ranging in size from bags to trailer 

loads of domestic waste associated with residential premises to contractors depositing semi-

trailer loads of waste including tyres, asbestos and building materials.  Illegal dumping is 

not only limited to road verges, but also occurs on parks, reserves, creeks and other water-

courses. 

A successful grant funding application for councils ‘We’re Out to Get You’ campaign received 

from Zero Waste SA allowed Council to install surveillance cameras to monitor vehicle 

movement; detect licence plates and record evidence to prosecute those dumping on road-

sides.  

In the past it has been difficult to prosecute persons for illegal dumping due to lack of evi-

dence in most cases; however, Council is hopeful that once cameras begin to catch them 

out, offenders will get the message.  Council is working very closely with the media who are 
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 Library Services 

The District Council of Mallala Library Service has continued to experience a growth in usage. 

The facilities at Two Wells Public Library have been enhanced with the introduction of air-

conditioning, new shelving for children’s audio visual and magazine collections, providing 

easier access to these resources. Changes in layout have resulted in a more relaxed reading 

area. Community feedback has been very positive. Mallala Branch Library has become a 

popular service to the community; its new location has resulted in increased new library 

members. Windsor Branch Library continues to be used regularly. 

The usage of the library’s IT facilities continues to be popular, and includes public internet 

access, library catalogue, word processing, printing and photocopying. The local history col-

lection continues to be used by local and visiting researchers. 

Library Loans Snapshot 2009/2010 

Category 2009-10 

Adult Non-fiction 3005 

Large Print 1895 

Adult Fiction 5579 

Children’s Collections (fiction and non-fiction, including Children’s adolescent) 634 

Children’s Fiction 3062 

CDs and ‘Hear-a-books’ 512 

Children’s Adolescent (Fiction and Non-fiction) 329 

DVDs 4169 

Magazines 2109 

Total Loans 2009/10 21,294 

Branch Librarian Loans—Collection Types 

 Two Wells Mallala Windsor 

Adult Non-fiction 2600 197 N/A 

Large Print 1561 201 N/A 

Adult Fiction 4806 332 N/A 

Children’s Non-fiction 1230 11 N/A 

Children’s Fiction 3515 149 N/A 

CDs 388 11 N/A 

Children’s Adoloscent (Fiction & non-

fiction) 

314 15 N/A 

DVDs 3830 238 N/A 

Magazines 1810 188 N/A 

Miscellaneous Collections (including hear-a

-books, inter-library loans, equipment) 
724 49 5 

Registered Borrowers Snapshot 2009/2010 

Registered Borrowers 1500 

Registered Borrowers (residents) 1254 

Registered  Borrowers (non-residents) 183 

Inactive Registered Borrowers (those who have not used their 63 
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Library Collections 

The library collection have been reviewed regularly, with outdated stock being sold in regular 

book sales throughout the year.  The result is a good income for new library material.  Due 

to the changes in technology, the video collection was phased out in mid 2009 and the re-

sulting DVD collection continues to be a very popular part of the library’s audio visual collec-

tion. 

The library collection has grown overall, with particular emphasis given to improving the 

children’s non-fiction and early Reader collection.  This has resulted in a broad range of re-

sources for our young library members, which will enhance the development of their literacy 

and numeracy skills.  The library also introduced the Home Energy Toolkit for loan, which 

has been borrowed continuously since it was first catalogued into the collection. 

Types of Registered Borrowers—Institutional Members  

Adults (18+ years) 850 Children (0-17) 504 

Females  637 Females  268 

Males  204 Males 236 

Registered Borrowers and Loans by Home Library 

 Two Wells Mallala Windsor Total 

Registered Borrowers 1380 67 53 1500 

Loans 19022 2074 705 21801 

 

Door Count and Facilities usage Snapshot 

 Two Wells Mallala Windsor Total 

Door Count 5856 918 241 7015 

Meeting Room Bookings 

(TW only) 

185 N/A N/A 185 

Internet & Computer    

Bookings 

584 N/A N/A 584 

Community Information 

Enquiries (including Council) 

252 N/A N/A 252 

Reference Enquires 

(includes local history) 

509 N/A N/A 509 

4629 Total door count in 2008/2009   

2009-10 Library Collection—Statistical Snapshot  

Category  

Adult Fiction 4508 

Adult Non-fiction 3586 

Large Print 1505 

Children’s Fiction 3771 

Children’s Non-fiction 1914 

CDs 262 

DVDs 1048 

Periodicals (Magazines—49 titles) 1046 
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Library Management System (Spydus) Upgrade 

The library management system, Spydus, was upgraded in July 2009, including some minor 

work in customizing the online catalogue.  The result is an improved  catalogue which also al-

lows library members to submit online reviews of l resources they have borrowed and a com-

puter generated booking system.  

Volunteers 

The library service continues to be well supported by its volunteers, resulting in a contribution 

of 212 hours at Two Wells Public Library.  In addition, the library hosted one work experience 

placement. 

Events and Programs 

The library has facilitated and been involved in a number of events and programs associated 

with the District Council of Mallala, highlights from the year are detailed below: 

Book launch a great success! 

On Monday, 17 August the Two Wells Public Library hosted the launch of the second edition of, 

‘Two Wells: Then and Now’, a history of the Hundred of Port Gawler by Bet Williams.  Approxi-

mately 70 people attended, with people travelling from Adelaide, Port Pirie, Port Lincoln and 

Victor Harbor. Bet acknowledged the support of many individuals over the past years who 

helped make the updated edition possible. 

Copies of the book were generously donated to he library, some of which are available for loan.  

Trish White, MP (State Member for Taylor) officially launched the book referring to some of the 

stories in the book she had enjoyed reading.  

 

Statistical Snapshot of Inter-library Loan Requests 

Inter-library Loan (ILL) Requests (using the PLAIN statewide network) 

ILL requests sent to the network 1309 

ILL loans received from the network 697 

ILL requests received from the state network 2829 

ILL loans sent to the network 725 

Librarian, Kimberley Hargreave with 

Bet and Les Williams at the book 
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Participation in Council’s 75th Anniversary Events 

Library staff assisted colleagues from the Community Services Department with a variety of 

events to celebrate Council’s 75th Anniversary, including the  combined 4th birthday of the 

Two Wells Public Library and the launch of the photographic competition ‘Take A Closer 

Look”.  

Tax Help @ the Library!   

The Tax Help program was again hosted by the District Council of Mallala at the Two Wells 

Public Library for the 6tth time in 2009 tax season. The sessions have taken place outside of 

‘traditional’ business hours on Wednesday evenings and Saturday mornings, which continue 

to prove popular with users and also increase awareness of the library opening hours. 

This is a FREE service run by the Australian Tax Office and is open to individual taxpayers 

who need to lodge a tax return or form. The service is not open to individuals with business 

income, capital gains or losses or rental income. 

Swap and Save very popular! 

In October the library was one of Council’s collection points for the SA Water ‘Swap and Save’ 

program, where your old ‘shower head’ could be swapped for a new  water saving rated 

shower head.  

Over 50 people visited the library to swap their shower head, some had not visited before, 

but discovered many reason’s to become a library member! 

Salvation Army Christmas Appeal @ Your Library 

The library service and council staff will be supported the Salvation Army Christmas Appeal in 

December 2009. The response was good with 6 boxes of donated non-perishable food items 

and gifts received. 

It’s easy to ‘READ on the wild side’  

The library service again ran a Summer Reading Program throughout December 2009 and 

January 2010. Titled ‘READ on the wild side’, 34 children registered and 17 completed the 

program (reading 200 books) and received a prize and certificate. 

 
 
 
 
 

Winner of the photographic competi-

tion,  Vaughan Chenoweth  pictured 

with John Lush 
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Key Departmental Services: 

The Corporate Services Team comprises of eight staff including: 

Corporate Services   

Asset Control Human Resources 

Cemeteries Risk Management 

Civic Centres Payroll 

Council Committee Administration Public Debt and Funding 

Customer Service Rating and Property 

Financial Compliance Records Management 
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The following report highlights any specific or new activities performed under each service 

area: 

Asset Control  

Council appointed a new Asset Co-ordinator in 2010 who has made significant development 

with Council’s Asset Management Plans, particularly relating to Council’s Land and Building 

assets, where short and long term maintenance requirements have been identified, taking 

into consideration financial and resource requirements.  

Significant work has commenced on the development of Council’s roads assets and we envis-

age these plans being completed in early 2011. 

The on-going development of Council’s Asset Management Plans will ensure that its assets 

are maintained, providing a more beneficial resource to the community as a whole. Through 

the Asset Management process, Council has identified a requirement to better financially and 

physically resource its Asset Management requirements and, in an effort to achieve this, 

engaged Tonkin Consulting to provide on-going direction. Council identified that future budg-

etary considerations need to be assessed and incorporated into the 10-year Financial Plan.  

Councils Land and Buildings and Road Infrastructure assets, constructed and / or purchased 

at cost, have been updated in our records and will depreciate over the estimated useful life. 

Cemeteries 

Council identified required changes to its cemetery procedures and practices to enhance on-

going management of the cemetery. A number of documents were drafted incorporating 

recommended changes, with further consultation and investigation into best practice stan-

dards being considered, prior to ratification.  

The Two Wells Cemetery entrance was rejuvenated and funded by the Two Wells RSL. A new 

fence was erected along the front of the cemetery with future landscaping scheduled for late 

2010. 

No significant works / changes occurred at Councils other five (5) cemeteries. 

Civic Centres  

The development of Councils Asset Management Plans and the involvement of its Outdoor 

staff have seen a vast improvement in Council’s buildings and amenities available to the 

community. The Old Two Wells Council Chambers has been up-graded and available to all 

community groups and is now a desirable location to hold meetings and other small func-

tions. 

The implementation of a significant air-conditioning system to the Two Wells Public Library, 

disabled access to the Mallala and Windsor Libraries has improved accessibility and comfort 

to community members and staff alike. 

There has been a range of remedial and legislatively required building works completed at 

Council’s Dublin, Mallala and Windsor Institutes. In particular, upgrades to disabled access 

and legislatively required fire and emergency requirements. Minor electrical work has been 

undertaken at each site with significant work scheduled as part of Council’s Asset Manage-

ment Plans. 

Considerable work was completed to the Dublin Institute kitchen, with work commencing in 

the later part of the year to install a kitchen to the Windsor Institute. Each site continues to 

provide a valuable resource and location for community members to hold a range of events 

and functions.  

Council identified during the period that its current civic resources could be better advertised 

and utilised by the community and re-drafted associated documents and requirements. All 

identified sporting and community groups within the District where provided with information 

relating to Council sites and the terms and conditions of hiring in addition to updated infor-

mation being placed on Council’s website. The improvement in Councils communication to 

the public in this area has seen an early increase in facility use which will ensure their on-

going viability. 

Public Debt & Funding  

As part of the Financial Sustainability program, Council has in place a long term financial 

plan and treasury management policy [4.17] to ensure cash flow and debt levels are moni-

tored and managed effectively to produce an optimum outcome for Council and its ratepay-

ers.  For the 2009-10 financial year a $1.7m debt was incurred.  
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Rating & Property  

Modelling property-rate revenue is done annually when Council formulates its annual budget to 

ensure overall rating increases are kept at targeted levels whilst accounting for valuation incre-

ments. Council makes adjustments to its variable rate to balance the impact of rate increases 

on individual households. 

Council continues to use a minimum charge plus variable rate by zone model in calculating and 

raising property rate revenue. The authenticity of property and name and address records is 

checked against the data provided by the office of the Valuer-general annually and updated 

where necessary.  

Records Management 

Records management is integral to the functions of Council; it enables the control of one of the 

most important resources in any organisation – that is recorded information. 

Council uses State Government GDS20 - General Disposal Schedule filing system as developed 

by a working party and State Records. All incoming correspondence is registered in our records 

system before being issued to officers concerned. 

Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2010 

Council’s auditor, Dean Newbery & Partners, audited and recently accepted and signed the 

District Council of Mallala Annual Financial Statements, without qualification. 

Council accepted and signed the statements at its Special Meeting on 29 November 2010. 

The Financial Statements, Notes to the Financial Statements and the Key Performance Indica-

tors are presented separately in this report and indicate that Council’s overall performance was 

satisfactory.  Council’s aim of producing a positive operating result continues to provide a chal-

lenge whilst the debt level remains satisfactory, and Council’s performance in maintaining and 

renewing infrastructure assets is within industry target range. 

Council Committee Administration  

The administration of Councils Section 41 Committees and the attendance by Council employ-

ees has moved forward with specific Council Departments and their Managers being responsi-

ble for Section 41 Committees associated with their core functions. This improved reporting 

structure has seen improvement with the governance of Section 41 committees.  

A review commenced and is continuing on the functions of Council Section 41 Committees and 

how Council may best manage them. In particular, aligning committees to relevant Council and 

community needs and improving the operation and effectiveness of those Committees. Council 

understands the associated on-going benefits of such committees and hopes that the continu-

ing review and implementation of a new structure will ensure the future viability and govern-

ance of its Section 41 Committees. 

Customer Service  

Council identified a need to provide a greater emphasis on its Customer Service and establish 

a consistent, communicative approach to the wider community. Council found it difficult to 

provide consistent service as a result of on-going resourcing issues which has impacted staff’s 

ability to provide a level of service expected by the community. 

Council provided additional internal resources and training to a number of staff delegated the 

task of designing a new user friendly website in addition to providing up-to-date, accurate in-

formation on a consistent basis. This project has proven successful, with further development 

ensuring a consistent and accurate source of Council related information and documents to the 

community as well as current issues for the District and region. 

Council engaged external consultants (Henders) to conduct an organisational review of Council 

resources which provided a strong focus on customer service. While recommendations of the 

review will not be fully implemented until late 2010 it is anticipated that the level of customer 

service and resourcing provided to the wider community will achieve Council’s goal of providing 

prompt, consistent and accurate information and advice to the community, via its officers and 

Council’s website. 

The organisational review highlighted a requirement for Council to source additional office 

space to negate the current practice of employees sharing offices and resources. Council’s 

building known as the Two Wells Visitor Information Centre which has been utilised by the Two 

Wells Regional Action Team to provide community based tourism, business services, computer 

classes, employment services and an outlet to pay Council rates and dog registrations, and 

partly funded by Council will cease operation in October 2010. Council identified this site as an 

ideal location to provide a secondary service office with plans in place to renovate and com-

mence operation from the site by late 2010. 
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Council anticipates that the acquisition of this site will further enhance Council’s ability to 

provide a greater customer service to the wider community, in-particular Council Planning 

and Development functions. 

Financial Compliance  

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are being used to analyse our financial situation and 

check any trends in our financial sustainability.  

Council endeavours to inform the Community of its current and projected financial position 

through the public consultation process for annual business planning, budgeting and rating. 

Financial sustainability indicators are also reported three times a year at each budget review 

to track our performance and to inform Council and interested parties. 

Human Resources 

The organisational review highlighted significant changes to Council’s current structure with 

the completion of those outcomes expected late in 2010. Council has been reliant on the 

services of contractors in the past 12 months, especially within the Finance Department 

which has seen a lack of adequate resourcing and a failure to retain experience and knowl-

edge in addition to impacting other core functions. 

The appointment of all recommended positions is scheduled for completion early 2011 when 

Council believes it will be in a more efficient operational position and expects greater service 

delivery internally and to the wider community. 

Information Technology (IT)  

There were no significant changes to Councils Information Technology and Communications 

systems through-out the period. An internal assessment was undertaken risk assessing and 

determining the life expectancy of Councils hardware with an appropriate replacement 

schedule put in place to ensure business continuity. The TRIM records management system 

which was due for adoption during the period has been deferred pending the employment of 

an IT Project Officer in the 2010 – 11 period. The adoption of this program will ensure 

greater records management of Council. 

Occupational Health & Safety (OHS&W) & Risk Management 

Council continues to be a self-insurer through the LGA Workers Compensation Scheme and 

is required to comply with WorkCover standards and to meet various legislative require-

ments for OHS&W and Injury Management. 

During the period the LGA has encouraged Council’s to adopt their One System program 

which has seen significant changes to Councils approach and direction with respect to 

OHSW & IM. There have been significant policy and procedural changes which have seen 

changes to the internal system as a whole. These changes are not yet fully in effect with all 

changes due for completion in early 2011. 

Council was audited in November by the LGA and external auditors with the focus of the 

audit on non-conformances from the 2008 WorkCover Audit. With the introduction of the 

external auditors and a significant change to the audit format Council failed to improve on 

its 2008 audit score of 82%, instead returning an overall score of 72.16%. While this can be 

attributed to the change in audit requirements and the LGA and WorkCover placing greater 

requirements on Council to perform Council felt that the score was not a reflection of its 

current position. An assessment of like-minded Councils through-out the region identified 

that audit scores and performance where pre-dominantly down on the preceding year. 

Significant changes have been implemented through-out the year and the requirement for 

additional resources identified. Council expects to see a vast improvement in its audit re-

quirements from the 2011 period onwards and continues to work with the LGA and regional 

Councils to better manage its OHSW & IM requirements. 

Council continues to work with the LGA Good Governance Program which has seen Council 

adopt a more structured approach to its risk management and governance requirements. 

There have been a number of governance policies reviewed and implemented over the pe-

riod, particularly relating to the finance sector. 

Council engaged Norman Waterhouse Lawyers to review its lease documents and significant 

changes were made to ensure Council was introducing legislative requirements and best 

practice standards as part of its property requirements. Council has held a number of dis-

cussions with third parties utilising Council owned / controlled land in an effort to re-

negotiate and better manage its assets with future developments in mind.  

Council still has significant work to do in its business continuity planning and envisages that 

this will evolve following the conclusion of the organisational review late 2010. The LGA 

through the Mutual Liability Scheme has developed a pilot business continuity framework 

and Council has tendered its interest in this program. 
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The District Council of Mallala Information Statement 2009 - 2010 

In accordance with Section 9 of the Freedom of Information Act 1991 and Regulation 5 of the 

Freedom of Information (General) Regulations 2002 this  Information Statement is published 

by the District Council of Mallala.  

The District Council of Mallala is pleased to comply with the Freedom of Information legislative 

requirements and welcomes all enquiries from the Public for information. 

1. Structure and Functions of Council 

1.1 Council Meetings 

 Council consisting of four (4) wards with eleven (11) Councillors, is the peak decision-

making body on all policy matters. Ordinary meetings of the full Council are held on the 

third Monday of every month, with each meeting commencing at 6.00 p.m.  Members of 

the public are welcome to attend. Where the Monday is a public holiday, Ordinary meet-

ings are held on the following Tuesday.   

 Council’s Strategic Infrastructure & Planning Committee which normally meets the sec-

ond Monday of each month and Council’s Strategic Community & Governance Committee 

which normally meets the third Monday of each month consists of all elected members 

and meet to discuss items required to be consider by the full Council at the Ordinary 

meeting with the view to providing greater opportunity for discussion and information 

while stream-lining the decision making process. 

 Council’s Development Assessment Panel normally meets the first Tuesday of each 

month, however does not sit if there are no development assessment considerations. 

 Ordinary & Strategic Council Meetings commence at 6:00 pm and the Council Develop-

ment Assessment Panel meetings commence at 6:30 pm, all meetings are held in the 

Mallala Council Chambers, Redbanks Road. In accordance with Council’s Public Consulta-

tion Policy Council may at times vary the times and locations of it’s meetings where a 

specific item of community interest warrants it. 

 All Council meetings are open to the public and agenda’s and minutes of each meeting 

are on public display or via Council’s website. 

1.2 Standing Committees 

Section 41 of the Local Government Act 1999 allows Council to establish Committees in 

an effort to streamline its business and assist with specific functions and programs 

within Council. In addition to Elected Members being sitting members, voted by Council, 

of these committees, members of the public are encouraged to nominate and become 

full voting members of Council’s Section 41 Committees. The membership of the public 

to these Committees provides greater involvement and ownership in specific projects 

and the decision making process. 

Section 41 Committees predominately operate in an advisory capacity to Council dis-

cussing specific functions of the Committee and making recommendations to Council 

which the Council will then consider and make a decision on. Each committee has rati-

fied Terms of Reference applicable to their authority, delegation and specific functions. 

The following Committees meet on an 'as required' basis with members of the public 

able to attend. Agenda’s and minutes of each Committee are available on Council’s web-

site and from its Principal Office and Libraries meetings are open to the public:  

Audit Committee 

CEO Appraisal Panel 

CEO Selection Panel 

Coastal Management Advisory Committee 

Community Development Board 

DCM Community Partnerships Programme Steering Committee 

Dublin Institute Committee 

Mallala Greening Committee 

Mallala & Districts Aged Homes Committee 

Mallala & Districts Historical Committee 

Mallala Institute Committee 

Mallala Sports Park Committee 

Strategic Community & Governance Committee 

Strategic Infrastructure & Planning Committee 

Freedom of Information 



                                                                                                                                                  47 

District Council of Mallala 

Allowances 

Members of Council’s Audit Committee and Council’s Development Assessment Panel 

are entitled to receive an allowance within the limits imposed by the legislation. The 

allowance is to help cover the cost of performing and discharging their official func-

tions and duties. 

The following allowances were paid by Council for the period: 

Audit Committee: 

Mr. John Comrie:  $3,300 

Council Development Assessment Panel: 

Mr. Ian O’Loan:  $3,200 

Mr. Rob Veitch:  $2,800 

Ms. Sandra Foote:  $3,280 

Mr. Trevor White:  $3,200 

Mr Peter Fairlie-Jones No fee 

Total:                          $15,780 

1.3 External Bodies 

Council is a member of, or participates in, a number of external Associations, Boards 

and Committees through-out the region. Council’s membership / participation may 

involve its elected members, employees and on occasion may involve members of 

the public. These external bodies include: 

Adelaide & Mount Lofty NRM Board 

Yorke NRM Board (1 July to 31 December 2009) 

Regional Development Australia Barossa (1 January to 30 June 2010) 

Adelaide Plains Marketing Committee (In recession) 

Local Government Association 

Local Government Finance Authority 

Central Local Government Region Inc 

Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority  

District Council of Mallala Bushfire Prevention Committee 

Mid North Regional Passenger Transport Service 

Yorke Regional Development Board (30 June to 31 December 2009) 

Wakefield Group of Councils. 

1.4 Subsidiaries 

Council is a member of two (2) subsidiaries under Section 42 of the Local Government 

Act 1999 the Central Local Government Region and the Gawler River Floodplain Man-

agement Authority, in accordance with Section 28(3) Schedule 2 of the Local Govern-

ment Act, 1999, activity reports and financial statements for both subsidiaries may be 

provided on request and in accordance with Council’s Schedule of Fees.  

Council does not have any subsidiaries established in accordance with Part 1 Schedule 

2 of the Local Government Act, 1999. 

Delegations 

 Under Section 44 of the Local Government Act 1999 Council is able to delegate au-

thority under a range of legislative acts and regulations to the Chief Executive Officer 

who in-turn is able to sub-delegate authority to specific Council employees and com-

mittees. 

 Council delegations are reviewed annually and maintained via a delegations register. 

1.5 Functions of Council 

Council has a legislative requirement and responsibility to: 

Determine policies to be applied by the Council in exercising its discretionary pow-

ers; 

Determine the type, range and scope of projects to be undertaken by the Council; 

and 

Develop comprehensive management plans, budgets, financial controls and per-

formance objectives and indicators for the operations of Council. 

Council makes decisions which may direct or determine its activities and functions. 

Such decisions include the approval of works and services to be undertaken; the 

resources required to undertake such works and services.  Decisions are also made 

to determine if approvals are to be granted for applications from residents for vari-

ous forms of development. 
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 1.6 Council Policies 

 Community Development 

 

 

Economic Development 

Building Inspection Policy 

Natural and Built Environment 

Governance & Organisation 

 

 

2. Services to the Community 

Council makes decisions on policy issues relating to the services provided for members of 

the public.  These services include, but are not limited to: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cemeteries Volunteers 

Fire Fighting & Other Emergency Activities  

Vegetation  Control of Election Signs 

Resident Contribution to Road Sealing Reserve Development 

Route Assessment for Restricted Access 

Vehicles 

Road Naming 

Stormwater Policy – Lewiston / Two Wells 

Rural Living Area 
 

Asset Impairment Elected Members Code of Conduct 

Asset Management Employee Code of Conduct 

Asset Revaluation Expenditure of Goods, Services & Works 

Audit Committee Funding 

Caretaker Labour, Plant, Equipment and Materials 

Code of Practice – Access to Council     

Meetings & Documents 

Land Under Roads 

Community Consultation Records Management 

CDAP Complaints Handling  Risk Management 

Council Members Allowance & Benefits Sexual Harassment 

Customer Service Standards Staff Disciplinary  

Disposal of Assets other than Land Tender & Purchasing 

Disposal of Surplus Community Land Treasury Management 

Elected Members Training & Development Workplace Bullying 

Community Development  

Aged and Disabled Services Food Act Administration 

Animal Management Library 

Clubs Museum & History 

Community Development, Events and 

Information 

Ovals 

Community Services Support Public Environment & Health 

Dog Management Volunteer Services 

Fire Prevention Youth Services 

Economic Development  

Area Promotion and Tourism Economic Development 

Commercial Housing Town Planning 

District Development  
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Public Participation 

3.1 Council Meetings 

 Members of the public have a number of opportunities and avenues to express their 

views on particular issues before Council. 

 These are: 

 Deputations - a member of the public wishing to appear before Council or a Committee 

of Council must seek permission of the Mayor or Committee Chairman. A request must 

include a statement of the reason why the deputation wishes to appear. 

 The Chief Executive Officer must notify the Mayor and the Mayor must advise the Chief 

Executive Officer, in writing, that the Chief Executive Officer notifies the deputation, in 

writing, of the date and hour of the meeting and also informing them that they have up 

to five (5) minutes to discuss the item. 

  

Natural & Built Environment  

Asset Control Open Space Planning 

Beach Patrols Planning Amendment Reports 

Bridge & Culvert Construction and     

Maintenance 

Reserve Development and Maintenance 

Building Rules Administration Planning Appeals 

Community Infrastructure Playgrounds 

Cemeteries Public Conveniences 

Civic Centres Road Construction and Maintenance 

Council Facilities Maintenance Rubble Pits and Quarries 

CWMS Administration Storm Water and Drainage 

Environment Land Management Protection Street Cleaning 

Flood Control Street Lighting 

Footpath Construction & Maintenance Town Planning 

Foreshore Protection Vehicle Parking 

Gardens War Memorials 

Kerb Construction and Maintenance Waste Management 

Governance and Organisation  

Business Planning Payroll and Human Resources 

Council Committees Plant Operations 

Customer Service Public Debt and Funding 

Depot Operations Private Works 

Elected Member Support Quadruple Bottom Line Reporting 

Financial Compliance Rating & Property 

Governance Administration Records 

IES Indirect Expenses Regional Relations and Planning 

Information Technology Vehicle Management 

OH&S and Risk Management Compliance Strategic Planning & Executive Manage-

ment Operations 

Organisational Performance  
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Petitions - Written petitions must be addressed to Council on any issue within the Council’s 

jurisdiction. 

Written Requests - A member of the public can write to Council on any Council policy, ac-

tivity or service. 

Elected Members - Members of the public can contact (verbal or written) their Elected 

Members of Council to discuss any issue relevant to Council. 

Open Forum – To encourage direct communication between the public and Council, a 30 

minute open forum segment is held for the public to make statements, place submissions or 

put questions before Council.  Open Forum commences at 6:30pm.  

Staff Members – members of the public may contact Council staff either in writing or ver-

bally to discuss issues relevant to Council. 

Council hold regular Consultation & Information sessions relevant to specific projects from 

time to time and members of the public are encouraged to attend. 

3.2 Community Consultation 

 Council acknowledges that the community has a right to be informed and involved in deci-

sions affecting the District and is committed to effective consultation and communication 

with its residents and other stakeholders.  Effective consultation involves seeking and receiv-

ing feedback, as well as providing information to the community.  

 Council’s Community Consultation Policy outlines the procedures Council will follow when 

engaging and seeking feedback from the community in its decision making process ensuring 

accountability and transparency. Dependant on the topic for consultation, the number of 

residents who have the potential to be affected and the community interest in the topic will 

determine the level of consultation undertaken by Council which may include: 

Regular Newsletter – District Communicator 

Direct Mail Publications 

Local, Regional & State Media Publications 

Media Releases 

Community Forums and Stakeholder Meetings 

Market Research and Surveys 

Council’s Website – www.mallala.sa.gov.au 

General Fixed Displays / Notice-Boards / Library Displays. 

4. Access to Council Documents 

4.1 Documents Available for Inspection 

 The following documents are available for public inspection at Council’s Principal Office, 2a 

Wasleys Road, Mallala free of charge between 9:00 am and 5:00 pm Monday to Friday 

(excluding Public Holidays). A range of documents is also available on Councils website at 

www.mallala.sa.gov.au 

Annual Budget Natural & Built Environment Policies 

Annual Financial Statements Register of Allowances & Benefits, Elected 

Members 

Annual Report Register of Community Land 

Community & Development Policies Register of Debenture Loans 

Council & Committee Agendas Register of Interests, Elected Members 

Council & Committee Minutes Register of Interest, Employees 

Council By-laws Register of Leases & Licences 

Delegations Register Register of Public Roads 

Development Plans Register of Salaries 

Economic Development Policies Schedule of Fees & Charges 

Elected Members Code of Conduct Strategic Plan 

Employee Code of Conduct Voters Roll 

Governance & Organisation Policies  
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4.2 Other Information Requests 

 Requests for information not included in Clause 4.2 above will be considered in accor-

dance with the Freedom of Information Act 1991 and the Local Government Act 1999.   

 In accordance with this legislation an application fee and where appropriate, a search fee, 

must be forwarded with a completed request form as provided for in Regulation 275 of 

the Freedom of Information Act 1991, unless the applicant is granted an exemption.   

 Where the applicant requires copies of any documents inspected, pursuant to a Freedom 

of Information request, the charges set out in Council’s Schedule of Fees will apply. 

 Freedom of Information enquiries and Request Forms must be addressed to: 

 Governance Coordinator 

 District Council of Mallala 

 P.O. Box 18 

 MALLALA SA 5502 

 Forms are available at Council’s Principal Office. 

 Applications will be responded to as soon as practicable within the statutory period of 

Council receiving the properly completed Freedom of Information Request Form, together 

with application and search fees. 

 In accordance with Section 13 of the Freedom of Information Act 1991 and Section 65 of 

the Local Government Act 1999 8 determinations relating to Access to Documents re-

quests were received by Council in the twelve months to 30 June, 2010. 

5. Amendment of Council Records 

 A member of the public may request access to Council documents, to make amendments 

to their personal affairs, by making a request under the Freedom of Information provi-

sions of the Local Government Act 1999.  A request may then be made to correct any 

information about them that is incomplete, incorrect, misleading, or out of date. 

 To gain access to these Council records, a Freedom of Information Request Form must be 

completed, as indicated above, outlining the records that the applicant wishes to inspect. 

6. Confidentiality Provisions 

Council utilised the following provisions of Section 90 of the Local Government Act 1999 

to consider confidential matters during the period: 

 90(2)   seven   (7) occasions 

 90(3)(a)  two      (2) occasions 

 90(3)(b)  five      (5) occasions 

 90(3)(c)  one      (1) occasion 

 90(3)(i)  two      (2) occasions 

 90(3)(k)  four      (4) occasions 

 90(3)(l)  four      (4) occasions 

Council utilised the following provisions of Section 91of the Local Government Act 1999 

for matters to remain confidential during the period: 

 91(7)    eleven (11) occasions 

 91(9)   four      (4) occasions 

Council’s Development Assessment Panel decided on two (2) confidential items during the 

period, and Council’s Mallala & Districts Aged Homes Committee decided on one (1) confi-

dential item. 

This Information Statement is published by the District Council of Mallala in accordance 

with the requirements of Section 65(r) of the Local Government Act 1934, as amended. 

The District Council of Mallala is pleased to comply with this legislation and welcomes all 

enquiries from the Public for information. 

An updated Information Statement will be published at least every 12 months. 
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Internal Review of Council Decisions 
1. Purpose 

  The District Council of Mallala is committed to transparent decision-making processes; and to 

providing access to a fair and objective procedure for the internal review of decisions. 

  Grievances may arise as a result of dissatisfaction with a decision about a policy, procedure, 

service or fee.  All attempts will be made to resolve grievances quickly and efficiently, without 

the need for formal applications for review to be lodged.  Sometimes this cannot be achieved.  

The procedure provides guidance for dealing with formal requests for internal review of deci-

sions of Council, its employees, and other people acting on behalf of the Council. 

 Dealing with grievances at the local level is the most effective way of resolving matters 

quickly.  Applicants for review of decisions will be encouraged to participate in the review han-

dling process co-operatively.  However, this will not negate citizens’ rights to seek external 

review through the State Ombudsman, other legal appeal processes, or the Courts at any time 

during the internal review process.  

2. The Local Government Act 1999 (‘The Act’) 

 The District Council of Mallala’s Internal Review of Council Decisions Procedure, has been 

adopted in accordance with Section 270 of the Local Government Act 1999.  The Procedure is 

one aspect of Council’s customer focussed approach to service delivery.  It provides a further 

opportunity to review the way Council provides services to the community and to identify ar-

eas for improvement. 

3. When will the internal review of council decisions procedure apply? 

 Issues arise about a range of matters during the course of Council’s day-to-day activities.  

Most grievances are initially made verbally by telephone, face-to-face to a Council officer, or 

some may be made in writing in the first instance.  Sometimes elected members also receive 

grievances.  Grievances will be referred to the relevant Council staff member in the first in-

stance and prompt action generally results in the matter being resolved satisfactorily. 

 The Internal Review of Council Decisions Procedure will apply to requests for review of deci-

sions of Council, its employees or other persons acting on behalf of Council.  A formal applica-

tion or request for review of a decision will therefore initiate the procedure process.  The per-

son who lodges a formal request for internal review is referred to as the ‘applicant’. 

 The Internal Review of Council Decisions Procedure will apply to all formal requests for review 

of Council decisions, except in instances where specific procedures are prescribed in Local 

Government or other relevant legislation.  For example: Conflict of Interest, Election and Vot-

ing, Development Act, and Freedom of Information Act matters. 

 Examples of when other processes will be used include: - 

Electoral Issues – Local Government (Elections) Act 

Development Act matters 

Freedom of Information requests 

Expiation of Offences – for example, dog and parking controls 

By-Laws and Order making powers 

Rates 

 Valuations – Valuer General 

 Declarations 

 Invalid Rate 

 Land Use 

Code of Conduct issues 

Employment related matters 

Conflict of Interest matters 

Electoral sign issues 

Decisions made through delegations under other Acts, such as: 

 Country Fire Services Act (Section 40 notices) 

 Water Resources Act 

 Health and Food Act 

4. Who can lodge a request for a review of a decision? 

Any person, who is affected by the decisions made by Council, may lodge a request for Inter-

nal Review of a Council decision.  For example, residents, ratepayers, members of a commu-

nity group, users of Council’s facilities, and visitors to the area all have the right to lodge an 

application for review. 
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5. How can a request for a decision review be lodged? 

  Formal requests for the review of Council decisions are to be made in writing to the Chief 

Executive Officer, providing full details about the review request.  Assistance will be pro-

vided to applicants, where necessary, including the use of an interpreter, providing assis-

tance for people with a disability, or referring applicants to an advocate to help prepare a 

written application. 

Council undertakes to maintain confidentiality as far as is possible, and only relevant 
parties will be involved.  Applicants will be encouraged to observe confidentiality also, as 
this is likely to achieve the fairest result for all concerned. 

6. How will a request for internal review of a Council decision be dealt with? 

Principles of natural justice will be observed in dealing with all matters.  All parties will 

have the opportunity to express their point of view, provide relevant information, and 

respond to issues raised.  Council has nominated a Contact Officer who is responsible for 

dealing with the request for review of a Council decision in the first instance. The Coun-

cil’s Chief Executive Officer is the Contact Officer. 

 The Contact Officer will assess the request, determine the appropriate action, and ar-

range for independent review if necessary.  Should the applicant not be satisfied with the 

decision of the Contact Officer then, if necessary, the matter will be referred to the Coun-

cil. 

 Some matters will be referred directly to Council for consideration or re-consideration.  

The types of requests for review of Council decisions that could be referred to Council are 

those regarding: - 

Decisions made by resolution of Council 

Council endorsed objectives and policies 

Budgetary matters or evaluation of service delivery matters 

Civic and ceremonial matters 

The Internal Review of Council Decisions Procedure, or the process applied. 

Issues that are likely to be of interest to the wider community 

Matters which may involve litigation 

Recommendations to refuse to review a decision raised by an applicant on the grounds 

that it is frivolous or vexatious, or where the applicant does not have a sufficient in-

terest in the matter 

Matters where legal procedures have not been followed, for example, relating to 

leases and licences and tenders. 

Any other matters at the discretion of the Contact Officer. 

Matters may also be dealt with through independent mediation, where the associated 

costs will be shared equally between Council and the applicant.  The Contact Officer will 

discuss this option with applicants where relevant. 

7. How long will it take for the request for review of a Council decision to be as-

sessed? 

 A request for review of a Council decision will be formally acknowledged within 5 days of 

receipt, including advice to applicants about the expected timeframe for dealing with the 

matter.  In most cases applications for review will be considered within 21 days, although 

in some circumstances it may take longer.  However, in all cases, applicants will be kept 

informed about the progress of the review, and advised in writing of the outcome of the 

review procedure and process. 

 If applications for review are not resolved satisfactorily, applicants will be advised of 

other options for review, such as the State Ombudsman, legal advice, and/or the courts. 

8.  The process adopted 

The following diagram demonstrates the review processes available to the applicant for 

the review of Council decisions. 

Further Information: 

Charles Mansueto is the Contact Officer for the District Council of Mallala regarding advice 

about the Internal Review of Council Decisions Procedure. 

For further information about the Procedure and other options for review, please contact: 

Charles Mansueto, Chief Executive Officer 

District Council of Mallala, PO Box 18 Mallala  SA  5502 

Telephone:  8527 2006 

Fax:  8527 2242 

Email: info@mallala.sa.gov.au  

Copies of the Procedure are available from the Council offices at no charge 



Annual Report 2009—10                                                                                                       54 

 

Introduction 

This document sets out the policy of the District Council of Mallala for setting and collecting 

rates from its community.  The policy covers:  

contact details for further information 

strategic focus 

annual adoption of the rating policy 

method used to value land 

notional values 

adoption of valuations 

business impact statement 

Council’s revenue raising powers/differential general rates 

minimum rate 

water catchment levy (the Council’s collection role) 

separate rate 

service charge 

rate concessions 

state seniors card ratepayer (self funded retiree) 

pensioner concession 

other concessions 

payment of rates 

late payment of rates 

sale of land for non-payment of rates 

remission and postponement of rates 

rebate of rates 

Disclaimer 

Contact Details for Further Information 

Rates Officer  

The District Council of Mallala 

2a Wasleys Road, MALLALA     SA     5502 

Telephone:  08 8527 0200 

Fax: 08 8527 2242 

Email: PeterB@mallala.sa.gov.au 

Strategic Focus 

In setting its rates for the 2009 / 2010 financial year the Council has considered the follow-

ing: 

Council’s Strategic, Asset Management and Long Term Financial Plans;  

current economic climate and determining factors such as inflation and interest rates; 

specific issues faced by our community, which are, but not limited to: 

 need to continually replace and upgrade infrastructure assets; 

 continuation of the waste management and recycling program to all areas of the     

District; 

2010/2011 financial year; 

impact of rates on the community, including: 

 householders, businesses and primary producers. 

Annual Adoption of the Rating Policy 

Section 171 of the Local Government Act 1999 requires Council to prepare and adopt annu-

ally, in conjunction with setting the rates, a rates policy.  The policy must be available at 

Council’s Principal Office and a summary version must be distributed with rates notices. 

Method Used to Value Land 

Council may adopt one of three valuation methodologies to value the properties in its area.  

They are: 

Capital Value – the value of the land and all of the improvements on the land. 

Site Value – the value of the land and any improvements which permanently affect the 

amenity of use of the land, such as drainage works, but excluding the value of buildings 

and other improvements. 

Annual Value – a valuation of the rental potential of the property. 

 

Rating Policy Statement 



                                                                                                                                                  55 

District Council of Mallala 

Council decided to continue to use capital value as the basis for valuing land within the Council 

area.  Council considers this method of valuing land provides the fairest method of distributing 

the rate burden across all ratepayers on the following basis: 

the equity principle of taxation requires that ratepayers of similar wealth pay similar taxes 

and ratepayers of greater wealth pay more tax than ratepayers of lesser wealth; 

property value is a relatively good indicator of wealth and capital value, which closely ap-

proximates the market value of a property and provides the best indicator of overall prop-

erty value; 

the distribution of property values throughout the Council area is such that few residential 

ratepayers will pay significantly more than the average rate per property. 

Notional Values 

Certain properties may be eligible for a notional value under the Valuation of Land Act 1971 

where the property is the principal place of residence of a ratepayer. This can relate to certain 

primary production land or where there is State heritage recognition. A notional value is gener-

ally less than the capital value and this will result in reduced rates, unless the minimum rate 

already applies.  Application for a notional value must be made to the State Valuation Office. 

Adoption of Valuations 

Council adopted the valuations made by the State Valuation Office as provided to the Council 

at the end of June 2010.  Where the ratepayer is dissatisfied with the valuation made by the 

Valuer-General then the ratepayer may object to the State Valuation Office in writing, within 

60 days of receiving the notice of the valuation, explaining the basis for the objection, pro-

vided they have not: (a) previously received a notice of this valuation under the Local Govern-

ment Act 1999, in which case the objection period is 60 days from the receipt of the first no-

tice; or (b) previously had an objection to the valuation considered by the Valuer-General.    

The address of the State Valuation Office is: 

State Valuation Office 

GPO Box 1354 

ADELAIDE SA  5001 

email: lsg.objections@saugov.sa.gov.au 

Ph: 1300 653 345 

Please note that the Council has no role in this process.  It is also important to note that the 

lodgement of an objection does not change the due date for the payment of rates. 

Business Impact Statement 

The Council has considered the impact of rates on all businesses in the Council area, including 
primary production.  

Council’s Revenue Raising Powers / Differential General Rates 

All land within a Council area, except for land specifically exempt (e.g. Crown land, Council 

occupied land and other land prescribed in the Local Government Act 1999 – Section 147), is 

rateable.  The Local Government Act 1999 provides for a Council to raise revenue for the broad 

purposes of the Council through a general rate, which apply to all rateable properties, or 

through differential general rates, which apply to classes of properties. In addition, Council can 

raise separate rates, for specific areas of the Council or service rates or charges for specific 

services. Council also raises revenue through fees and charges, which are set giving considera-

tion to the cost of the service provided and any equity issues. Council Schedule of Fees and 

Charges is available on request for payment of the prescribed fee. 

At its meeting on 28 June 2010 Council decided to raise rate revenue of $5,584,715.54 in a 

total revenue budget of $7,535,000  As a result of this decision the Council has decided to 

impose differential general rates based on the zone in which properties are located within the 

District. 

Council also assessed the level of service delivered in each of these zones and this is reflected 

accordingly by the rate in the dollar set for each zone. 

Minimum Rate 

A Council may impose a minimum amount payable by way of rates.  Where two or more ad-

joining properties have the same owner and are occupied by the same occupier, only one mini-

mum rate is payable by the ratepayer.  Where a Council imposes a minimum rate it must not 

apply to more than 35% of properties in the Council area. 
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Council decided to impose a minimum rate of $630.00, which will affect (15.9%) of rateable 

properties. The reasons for imposing a minimum rate are: 

the Council considers it appropriate that all rateable properties make a base level contribution 

to the cost of administering the Council’s activities; and to 

the cost of creating and maintaining the physical infrastructure that supports each property. 

Natural Resources Management Levy 

Council is covered by the Adelaide & Mount Lofty Ranges.   

The Minister determines the levy to be contributed by Council using the basis set out in the 

Board’s plan. 

The levy is collected by Council, on behalf of the boards, by using a separate rate against all rate-

able properties in the Council area. 

This year the Minister determined that the contribution for the Adelaide & Mount Lofty Ranges 

Board the contribution is $61,463. 

Council has, therefore, set a separate rate of 0.009268 cents in the dollar for the Adelaide & 

Mount Lofty Ranges Board.   

Council is operating as a revenue collector for the Natural Resource Management Boards and does 

not retain the revenue nor does it determine how the revenue is spent. 

Separate Rate  

Council has provided an extension to the water main to supply water to rural living properties on 

Harris Road, Dublin. In order to recover the amount paid for the installation of the Dublin Water 

Supply the Council declared a separate rate of $541.46 payable on rateable properties along Har-

ris Road.  The separate rate will service the loan repayment raised to finance the installation of 

the water supply. 

Service Rate/Charge 

Council provides a septic tank effluent disposal system (STED) to Middle Beach.  The full cost of 

operating, maintaining and improving this service for this financial year is budgeted to be 

$17,250.  This includes setting aside funds in a specific reserve for the future replacement of the 

assets employed in providing the service.  

This cost will be recovered by Council through the imposition of a service charge for large and 

small tanks of $335 and $360 respectively.   

A service charge of $575.08 is also in place for the repayment of a loan raised to finance the in-

stallation of the STED scheme. 

Rate Concessions 

The State Government, in providing equity across South Australia in this area, funds a range of 

concessions on Council rates. The concessions are administered by various State Agencies who 

determine eligibility and pay the concession directly to Council on behalf of the ratepayer. Con-

cessions are available only on the principal place of residence.  

Ratepayers who believe they are entitled to a concession should not withhold payment of rates 

pending assessment of an application by the State Government as penalties apply to overdue 

rates. A refund will be paid to an eligible person if Council is advised that a concession applies 

and the rates have already been paid. 
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Appendix 1 

Financial Statements 

2009 –10 
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Annual Report 
for 2009 – 2010

A regional subsidiary of:

• The Barossa Council
• District Council of Barunga West
• Clare & Gilbert Valleys Council
• District Council of The Copper Coast
• The Flinders Ranges Council
• Regional Council of Goyder
• Light Regional Council
• District Council of Mallala
• District Council of Mount Remarkable
• Northern Areas Council
• District Council of Orroroo/Carrieton
• District Council of Peterborough
• Port Pirie Regional Council
• Wakefield Regional Council
• District Council of Yorke Peninsula
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Contact Details

Postal Address:
PO Box 168
CRYSTAL BROOK  SA  5523

Telephone:
(08) 8638 5557
0427609 404

Facsimile:
(08) 8638 5551

Email:
ceo@centralregion.sa.gov.au

Website:
www.centralregion.sa.gov.au
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The Central Local Government Region of South Australia

The Central Local Government Region was established in 1998 under Section 200 of the Local 
Government  Act  1934 as  a  controlling  authority.  It  now continues  in  existence  and  as  a 
regional subsidiary of its member Councils under Part 2 of Schedule 2 of the Local Government 
Act 1999 by virtue of the provisions of Section 25 of the Local Government (Implementation) 
Act 1999.

The Central Region is established to:

 undertake  co-ordinating,  advocacy  and  representational  roles  on  behalf  of   its 
Constituent Councils at a regional level

 facilitate and co-ordinate activities of local government at a regional level related to 
community and economic development with the object of achieving improvement 
for the benefit of the communities of its Constituent Councils

 develop,  encourage,  promote,  foster  and maintain consultation and co-operation 
and to strengthen the representation and status of local government when dealing 
with other governments, private enterprise and the community

 develop further co-operation between its Constituent Councils for the benefit of the 
communities of the region

 develop and manage policies which guide the conduct of programs and projects in 
the region with the objective of securing the best outcomes for the communities of 
the region

 undertake projects and activities that benefit the region and its communities

 associate, collaborate and work in conjunction with other regional local government 
bodies for the advancement of matters of common interest.

The Central Region is a body corporate and is governed by a Board of Management which has 
the responsibility to manage all activities of the Central Region and ensure that the Central 
Region  acts  in  accordance  with  its  Charter.  The  Board  has  15  members,  comprising  one 
representative elected from each constituent Council:

 Barossa Council
 District Council of Barunga West
 Clare & Gilbert Valleys Council
 District Council of The Copper Coast
 The Flinders Ranges Council
 Regional Council of Goyder
 Light Regional Council
 District Council of Mallala

 District Council of Mount Remarkable
 Northern Areas Council
 District Council of Orroroo/Carrieton
 District Council of Peterborough
 Port Pirie Regional Council
 Wakefield Regional Council
 District Council of Yorke Peninsula

The Region’s area spans the Barossa through the Clare Valley, Yorke Peninsula, Adelaide 
Plains, Mid and Upper North districts through to the Flinders Ranges, covering 27 per cent of 
the incorporated area of the State and comprises some 27 per cent of the State’s population 
outside Adelaide.
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Office Bearers for 2009/10

Chairman: Mayor James Maitland (Wakefield)

Deputy Chairs:
Mayor Max Mc Hugh (Flinders Ranges)
Mayor Ray Agnew (Yorke Peninsula)

Delegate to the LGA State 
Executive:

Mayor James Maitland (Wakefield)
Mayor Ray Agnew (Yorke Peninsula)

Proxy Delegate to the LGA 
State Executive:

Mayor Allan Aughey (Clare & Gilbert Valleys)

Delegates to SAROC:

Mayor James Maitland (Wakefield)
Mayor Ray Agnew (Yorke Peninsula)
Mrs Anita Crisp 
Proxy: Mayor Allan Aughey (Clare & Gilbert Valleys)

Executive Officer: Anita Crisp

Auditor: Gerald Cobiac and Co.
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Central Local Government Region Board of 
Management

The Central Local Government Region Board of Management comprises an elected delegate 
appointed from each of the 15 member councils. A proxy delegate is also appointed, with 
policy provisions allowing for representation by other elected or endorsed members.

In February 2007 the Central Local Government Region confirmed,  subject to the provisions 
within the Charter, the appointment of the following Council delegates to the CLGR Board of 
Management for a term to expire concurrent with the 2010 Local Government elections:

Council Delegate Proxy Delegate 

The Barossa Council Mayor Brian Hurn Cr Barrie Stewart

District Council of Barunga West Mayor Dean Dolling Deputy Mayor Ian Burgess

District Council of the Copper Coast Mayor Paul Thomas Deputy Mayor Dean Rodda

Clare & Gilbert Valleys Council Mayor Allan Aughey Cr Wayne Thomas

Flinders Ranges Council Mayor Max McHugh Deputy Mayor John Shute

Regional Council of Goyder Mayor Peter Mattey Deputy Mayor Warren Mosey

Light Regional Council Mayor Robert Hornsey Deputy Mayor Bill Carrick

District Council of Mallala Chair Cr  Tony Flaherty, replaced mid term by Chair Cr Marcus 
Strudwicke

District Council of Mount Remarkable Mayor  Trevor Roocke Cr Michael Pearce

Northern Areas Council Chair Cr Allan Woolford Cr Denis Clark

District Council of Orroroo Carrieton Chair Cr Kathie Bowman Deputy Chair Cr Colin Parkyn

District Council of Peterborough Mayor Ruth Whittle Cr Judith Kempen

Port Pirie Regional Council Deputy Mayor Neville Wilson Mayor Brenton Vanstone

Wakefield Regional Council Mayor James Maitland Deputy Mayor Barry Nottle

District Council of Yorke Peninsula Mayor Ray Agnew Cr Jeff Cook and Cr Joyce 
Yeomans

Meetings of the Central Local Government Region 
Board of Management

Four meetings of the Central Local Government Region Board of Management were held during 
the 2009/2010, each hosted by one of the member Councils. The meeting host and location is 
rotated throughout the region on alphabetical order. Meetings were held:

• Friday 14th August 2009 – AGM, hosted by District Council of the Copper Coast
• Friday 13th November 2009, hosted by The Flinders Ranges Council
• Friday 12th February 2010, hosted by Regional Council of Goyder
• Friday 14th May 2010, hosted by Light Regional Council
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Committee Meetings

In accordance with its Charter, the Central Local Government Region maintains several sub 
committees to assist  in effective project  implementation and governance.  The committee’s 
generally meet on an as needs basis and comprise representatives from the various member 
councils along with, in many cases additional delegates from other relevant regional bodies or 
state government agencies:

Committee Members Meeting Dates
Executive 
Committee:

Mayor James Maitland,  Mayor Max McHugh, Mayor Ray 
Agnew, Mayor Trevor Roocke, Cr Kathie Bowman

10th July 2009
9th October 2009
24th March 2010

Member Councils 
CEO’s Forums:

David Morcom (Barossa), Nigel Hand (Barunga West), 
Roy Blight (Clare & Gilbert Valleys), Peter Dinning 
(Copper Coast), Colin Davies (Flinders Ranges), John 
Brak (Goyder), Brian Carr (Light), Charles Mansueto 
(Mallala), Sean Cheriton (Mt Remarkable), Keith Hope 
(Northern Areas), Iian Wilson (Orroroo/Carrieton), Terry 
Barnes (Peterborough), Andrew Johnson (Pirie Regional), 
Phil Barry (Wakefield), Ricki Bruhn (Yorke Peninsula). 
Chaired by a member of the CLGR Executive

10th July 2009
9th October 2009
18 December 2009
9th April 2010

Transport 
Infrastructure 
Planning 
Committee:

Roy Blight – Chair (Clare & Gilbert Valleys), Michael 
Lange (Barossa), David Hassett (Wakefield), John Tillack 
(Mallala), Tony Eckermann (Clare & Gilbert Valleys), Roy 
O'Connor (Goyder), Fred Linke (Barunga West), Paul 
McInerney (Regional Development), Peter Tan (DTEI) 

23rd September 2009
23rd November 2009
10th February 2010
25-26th March 2010

Regional Waste 
Management 
Steering 
Committee:

Ian Baldwin (Barossa), Debbie Devlin (Port Pirie), 
Stephen Goldsworthy (Yorke Peninsula), Andrew Philpott 
(Light), Cr Trevor Roocke (Mt Remarkable), Cr Tony 
Schkabaryn (Barunga West), Cr Frederick Sparks 
(Northern Areas).

Northern
Colin Davies (Flinders Ranges), Sean Cheriton/Brenton 
Pearce (Mt Remarkable), Iian Wilson/John Schmidt 
(Orroroo Carrieton), Terry Barnes/Chris Thomson 
(Peterborough), Peter Broomhead (Northern Areas), Roy 
O’Connor/Trevor Wood (Goyder), Len Wilton (Pirie). 
Marina Wagner/Damon Curnow (EPA), Justin Lang 
(ZWSA), Ryan Viney (LGA). Mr Trevor Hockley (Project 
Officer) – Ex officio
Lower North & Yorke
Ian Baldwin (Barossa), Andrew Philpott  (Light), Steve 
Bateman (Mallala), Dave Hassett/Glen Growden 
(Wakefield), Richard Pym (Copper Coast), Stephen 
Goldsworthy (Yorke Peninsula), Fred Linke (Barunga 
West), Tony Eckermann (Clare & Gilbert Valleys), Roy 
O’Connor/Trevor Wood (Goyder), Len Wilton (Pirie). Mr 
Marina Wagner/Damon Curnow (EPA), Justin Lang 
(ZWSA), Ryan Viney (LGA). Mr Trevor Hockley (Project 
Officer) – Ex officio

*note the regional waste 
committee has not met, with 
transition to two sub-regional 
working groups from July 09

5th August 2009
15th October 2009
5th March 2009

Natural Disaster 
and Risk Mitigation 
Project Steering 
Committee:

Mr Phil Barry (Wakefield), Mr Ian Baldwin (Barossa), Cr 
Allan Woolford (Northern Areas), Mr John Schmidt 
(Orroroo Carrieton), Mr Matt Maywald (State Emergency 
Services), Mr Neville Hyatt (Project Officer) – Ex Officio

Nil – this project is now 
complete

Water Project 
Steering 
Committee:

Mr Ricki Bruhn (Yorke Peninsula), Mr Peter Dinning 
(Copper Coast), Mr Henri Mueller (Mallala), Mr Peter 
Stockings (Yorke Regional Development Board), Mr Kerry 

9th September 2009
5th November 2009
10th February 2010
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Committee Members Meeting Dates
Ward (Northern & Yorke NRM Board), Mr Paul Doherty 
(SA Water/Office of Water Security). Mr Geoffrey White 
(Project Officer) – Ex officio

Broadband Project 
Steering 
Committee:

Mr Phil Barry (Wakefield) – Chair, Mr Ricki Bruhn (Yorke 
Peninsula), Mr Peter Dinning (Copper Coast), Ms Leonie 
Fretwell (Goyder), Ms Kelly-Anne Saffin (Mid North 
Regional Development Board), Cr Elizabeth Calvert 
(Clare & Gilbert Valleys), Ms Louise Sladdin (Regional 
Broadband Officer) – Ex officio

6th August 2009
17th September 2009

Coastal Councils 
Project  Executive 
Committee:

Mayor Ray Agnew (Yorke Peninsula), Mr Damien 
Moloney/Mr Charles Mansueto (Mallala), Ms Anita Crisp 
(Central Region Executive Officer), Ms Deborah Allen 
(Coastcare Facilitator) – ex officio

Nil

Executive Officer 
Performance 
Review Committee:

Mayor James Maitland, Mr Nigel Hand, Cr Kathie 
Bowman

Nil

Regional Forums and Workshops

In  order  to  progress  specific  priorities  and  actions,  the  Central  Local  Government  Region 
occasionally  holds  information  forums  or  workshops  to  allow  member  councils  and  other 
relevant stakeholders to come together and discuss or learn about particular initiatives. 

The forums and workshops provide an opportunity for greater awareness, understanding and 
engagement with various Central Local Government Region activities and increases the level of 
active involvement by stakeholders. The following issue-specific forums were held during the 
2009/10 financial year.

12th November 2009 Climate Change Workshop & Training Forum, Hawker *

23rd November 2009 Regional Transport Workshop – Special Local Roads Briefing, Crystal Brook

17th March 2010 Coastal Councils Forum, Ardrossan

9th April 2010 Water, Natural Resources and Regional Development Update Forum, Clare
*- in conjunction with LGA training and development program

participants to the Water, Natural Resources 
and Regional Development Update Forum in 

Clare and the Climate Change Workshop 
 Training Session in Hawker
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Achievements for 2009/10

During  the  2009/10  year,  the  Central  Region  continued  to  progress  a  number  of  priority 
activities, as identified under the target areas within the strategic and business plan:

Focus Areas and Targets Achievements for 2009/10

1.  Board Governance and Operation

The Central Local Government Region’s 
actions and operation accountable and 
transparent in accordance with agreed 
governance practices.

 Appointment of Central Region Audit Committee 
 CLGR Board meeting agendas & minutes distributed in accordance 

with policy
 Committee operations executed within terms of reference
 Ongoing alignment of Central Local Government operations with 

agreed policies and procedures 
 Commence review of Central Region Strategic Plan targets
 Review accounting and financial management services contractual 

arrangements

2. Communication, Networks and Relationships

The Central Local Government Region -

• is well regarded by its member 
councils and stakeholders as a 
valid and relevant organisation 

• has a solid and broad network 
of relevant stakeholders with 
whom appropriate 
communication, a positive and 
collaborative relationship 
exists.

 Monthly newsletter prepared and distributed
 Attendance by Local Government Association (LGA)  and 

Department of Planning and Local Government (DPLG) at Central 
Region quarterly meetings

 Communications with LGA and DPLG staff as required
 Central Region representation at SA Regional Organisation of 

Councils (SAROC) and  LGA State Executive meetings
 Communication with SAROC Executive Officers on key issues
 Participation of relevant regional agencies and bodies on Central 

Region ommittees and at workshops and forums as appropriate 
 Member of Parliament briefings as required
 Website updates
 Regular ABC local radio and newspaper media coverage of Central 

Region projects and events

3. Regional Identity and Cohesion

Stakeholders of the Central Local 
Government geographical area operate 
as a strong, coordinated region that is 
well recognised and regarded at State 
and Federal levels and that works with 
an effective, collaborative and pro-
active approach to issues of priority.

 Participation in Regional Government Coordination Network
 Continued Central Region office co-location with Regional 

Department of Transport, Crystal Brook
 Correspondence  with State Government regarding number of 

uncoordinated regional plans and committees
 Formal submissions and ongoing liaison with State Government, 

LGA and Councils regarding establishment of Regional 
Development Australia (RDA)

 Submission to draft Greater Adelaide 30 Year Plan
 Liaison with SAROC and DPLG regarding long timeframes and cost 

of rezoning

4. Local Government Leadership, Succession and Sustainability

Local Government viewed as a genuine, 
effective, capable and legitimate level 
of government, with elections well 
contested, an improved rate of 
recruitment and retention of Local 
Government professional staff and a 
greater public awareness and 
appreciation of the role and function of 

 Quarterly Council Chief Executive Officer's  forum held
 Attendance at Australian Local Government Association assembly 

in Canberra
 Liaison with LGA and Government regarding increasing 

compliance and reporting responsibilities facing Councils
 Coordination of Central Zone appointments to LGA State 

Executive Committee
 Liaison with LGA on State Election Strategy
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Councils.
Local  Government  operations  are 
sustainable and adequately resourced

 Liaison with SAROC and Valuer Generals office regarding 
amalgamation of Council assessment details

 Central Region nominee to LGA Land Access Working Group and 
Valuation Working Group

5. Regional IT & Telecommunications

Improved telecommunications and 
technologies across the CLGR region 

 Second year of Clever Networks funding for Regional Broadband 
Project Officer 

 Funding submission to Digital Regions Initiative
 Ongoing liaision with Federal Minister and State Government and 

RDA regarding lack of competitive access to broadband in the 
region

 Correspondence and deputation with Federal and State 
Government regarding digital television switchover

 Federal funding for engagement of a regional Digital TV 
Switchover Liaison Officer

 Final report for Clever Networks Broadband project complete
 Update reports to SAROC and LGA regarding regional broadband
 Update broadband data for Central Region 

6. Waste Management

Viable, sensible and long term solutions 
for waste management across the 
region 

 Implementation of Regional Waste Management Strategy 
recommendations underway with support from TJH Management 
Services

 Regular meetings of waste sub regions active (southern & 
northern) including active participation by Environment Protection 
Authority and Zero Waste SA

 Coordination of Regional Assessment Panel for Zero Waste SA 
'Regional Implementation Program'

 Preparation of Regional Implementation Program regional 
submission

 Liaison with State Government regarding hazardous  waste
 Liaison with Federal and State Government regarding e-waste 

particularly in relation to digital TV switchover

7. Roads and Transport

Sound and sustainable transport 
network and appropriate community 
access to transportation

 Transport Infrastructure Planning Committee active
 Assessment, inspection and regional submission to Special Local 

Roads program
 Council Special Local Roads briefing held
 Update of Council road priorities sought
 Ongoing liaison with Councils and LGA regarding Rural Property 

Addressing rollout
 Liaison with LGA regarding Rail Crossing Interface agreements 

and funding proposal

8. Natural Resource Management

Local Government is appropriately 
resourced and considered as a 
genuine, integral and active partner to 
help achieve local NRM outcomes.

 Australian Government funded network of Local Government 
Environment & Sustainability Officers engaged

 Additional technical support for roadside vegetation management 
engaged

 Submission to LGA review of NRM levy report
 Review Central Local Government and NRM Engagement Plan
 Host NRM and Local Government engagement forum
 Local Government rep attendance at Regional NRM Board meetings
 Continued engagement of Regional Coastcare Officer through NRM 

Board funding
 Completion of Coastal Assessment Reports for Coastal Councils and 

support to seek on-ground works funding
Coordination of annual 'Coastal Council' Forum and ongoing liaison 
with Coastal Councils

 Funding submissions for extension of Environment and Coastcare 
support to Councils

page 9 108



9. Regional Water Supply

Measurable improvement in sustainable 
water supply for the Region 

 Continued support for final year of regional ICLEI Water 
Campaign delivery – nine Councils participating

 Water agencies workshop held in conjunction with Council CEO's 
forum

 Liaison with State water agencies to simplify planning and 
resourcing requirements for rural Councils

 Proposal to SAROC and LGA for funding support from Government 
for delivery of water activities by Counicls

 Funding of Technical Officer (Water) for Central Region
 Coordinate Central Region projects to LGA  bid to Water for Cities 

and Towns program

10. Energy Supplies

Secure, adequate and effective energy 
networks to meet community needs

 Rural Electricity Augmentation submission to State Government, 
Electricity Supply Planning Industry Commission and ESCOSA

11. Disaster Mitigation

Disaster risk is effectively managed and 
impact minimised

 Participation in Zone Emergency Management committees (ZEMC)
 Correspondence to State Minister regarding ZEMC funding
 Local Government representation on Regional Drought Taskforce
 Correspondence to State Minister regarding continuation of 

drought support programs
 Funding submissions for development of Regional Climate Change 

Vulnerability Assessment in conjunction with RDA, NRM and LGA
 Engagement of Business SA to offer Council Carbon and 

Sustainability Audits 
 Convene Climate Change workshop and training session in 

conjunction with LGA
 Representative to LGA Climate Change Steering Committee and 

attendance at ALGA and National Emergency Managemen climate 
change workshops

12. Community Health and Wellbeing

Appropriate infrastructure, facilities and 
services in place to suitably meet 
demand and enhance community 
health and wellbeing

 Liaison with Councils and agencies in relation to draft SA Public 
Health Bill, Telstra bill payment transaction fees and increase in 
SA Ambulance callout fees

 Presentation to Region and liaison with SAPOL  Yorke & Mid North 
Local Service Area

 Expression of Interest to Obesity Prevention and Lifestyle 
program (OPAL)

From Left: Central Region Transport Committee; SAROC Delegates Launch LGA State Election Strategy; ICLEI Water  
Campaign Recognition Event
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Constituent Councils: Adelaide Hills Council 
The Barossa Council 
Town of Gawler 
Light Regional Council 
District Council of Mallala 
City of Playford 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Address : 19 Charles Street 
Norwood South Australia  5067 

Telephone: (08) 8363 2969 
Mobile: 040 778 2255 
Facsimile: (08) 8363 9783 
Email: contact@fredpedler.com 
Web Site: www.fredpedler.com 
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Chairman’s Forward 

Work on the second stage of the program - attention to the South Para Reservoir Dam wall - has 
been slower than anticipated. Questions as to the cost to be met by the Authority and the advent of 
a State Election, which prevented consideration of the project by the Public Works Standing 
Committee, were responsible for the delay. Commencement of the project will hopefully be in early 
2011 for completion by late 2011. 

The need for the Authority's Charter to be reviewed and the consideration by the six respondent 
Councils as to their individual expectations continues to occupy the attention of the Board 
members. Creation of an Audit Committee now required by legislation has been another 
administrative consideration. 

In the interim final consideration of stage three - the lower Gawler River precinct - has been in 
abeyance pending not only its form but also more specifically how it is to be funded. 

Board member (and where appropriate proxy member) input is appreciated along with the advice 
from the Technical Panel and untiring effort of the Authority's Executive Officer, Mr Fred Pedler, 
whose services have been extended to 31st December 2011. 

Dr Bruce Eastick AM 
Chairman 

GRFMA 

The Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority (GRFMA) was formed as a Regional 
Subsidiary under Section 43 and Schedule 2 of the Local Government Act 1999 on 22nd August 
2002. The Constituent Councils are the Adelaide Hills Council, The Barossa Council, The Town of 
Gawler, Light Regional Council, District Council of Mallala and the City of Playford. 

The Charter provides that a representative of the Adelaide Mount Lofty Ranges Natural Resources 
Management Board (AMLRNRMB) is the Chairperson of the Board of Management of the GRFMA. 
The Charter sets down the powers, functions, safeguards, accountabilities and an operational 
framework and the Business Plan sets down the operational plan and financial plan to achieve 
agreed objectives. 

The GRFMA has been established for the following purposes: 

1. To co-ordinate the construction, operation and maintenance of flood mitigation infrastructure 
in the Gawler River area (the Floodplain); 

2. To raise finance for the purpose of developing, managing and operating and maintaining 
flood mitigation works within the Floodplain; 

3. To provide a forum for the discussion and consideration of topics relating to the Constituent 
Council’s obligations and responsibilities in relation to management of flood mitigation within 
the Floodplain; 

4. To enter into agreements with Constituent Councils for the purpose of managing and 
developing the Floodplain. 

The Board 

The Members of the Board for the year were: 

Authority Board Members Deputy Board Members 

AMLRNRMB Dr Bruce Eastick AM, Chair  

Adelaide Hills Council Cr Geoff Purdie  

Mr Peter Peppin, CEO 

Mr Marc Salver  
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Authority Board Members Deputy Board Members 

The Barossa Council Mayor Brian Hurn OAM 

Mr Ian Baldwin  

Cr Barrie Stewart  

Town of Gawler Cr Brian Thom 

Mr Stephen Kerrigan, CEO  

Mayor Brian Sambell 1 

Cr Warren Dibben 2 

Ms Heather Barclay 3 

Light Regional Council Cr William Close  

Mr Brian Carr, CEO  

Cr Peter Graham  

District Council of Mallala Cr Joe Daniele  

Mr John Tillack, A/CEO 4 

Mr Charles Mansueto, CEO 5  

Cr Ann Picard  

City of Playford Cr Max O’Rielly 

Mr Tim Jackson, CEO 

Cr Don Levitt  

1 To 8th January 2010 
2 From 8th January to 11th February 2010 
3 From 11th February 2010 
4 To 12th August 2010 
5 From 12th August 2010 

 

 

Ordinary meetings of the Board are held bi-monthly on the third Thursday of the even months 
commencing at 9.00 AM. Meetings are hosted by the Constituent Councils on a rotational roster. 
Six Board meetings were held during the year as follows: 

Thursday  20th August 2009 Gawler 
Thursday  15th October 2009  Mallala 
Thursday  10th December 2009  Elizabeth 
Thursday 11th February 2010 Kapunda 
Thursday 15th April 2010 Gumeracha 
Thursday 17th June 2010 Nuriootpa 

A Key Outcomes Summary is prepared following each Board Meeting that highlights the key issues 
and achievements and is distributed to Stakeholders electronically. 

Technical Assessment Panel 

A Technical Assessment Panel has been appointed to support the decision-making processes of 
the Board with delegated powers to provide advice and manage the technical aspects of the 
design, assessment and construction of the various parts of the Scheme: 

The Members of the Panel are: 

Dr Bruce Eastick AM, Chair 
Fred Pedler, Executive Officer, GRFMA 
Mark Temme, Group Manager, City of Playford 1 

Bill Lipp, Principal Stormwater Engineer, Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure 
Andy Parsons, Principal Engineer Dams & Civil, SA Water Corporation 
Mr Andy Slager, Civil Engineer, City of Playford (proxy to Mark Temme) 

1   To 17th June 2010 

 
The Panel meets as the agenda requires and held three meetings during the year as follows: 

Wednesday 4th November 2009 at Walkerville 
Wednesday 9th December 2009 at Walkerville 
Wednesday 7th April 2010 at Walkerville 
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Property Sale Committee 

A Property Sale Committee was appointed in June 2008 with delegated authority to sell two 
properties that were surplus to requirements. The Morgan property was sold in June 2009.  

The Members of the Committee are 

Dr Bruce Eastick AM, Chair 
Fred Pedler, Executive Officer, GRFMA 
Cr Brian Thom, Town of Gawler 
Mr Stephen Kerrigan, CEO, Town of Gawler 

The Committee has not met during the year 

Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme 

The ‘Scheme’ is described in the ‘Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme’, published by the 
Northern Adelaide & Barossa Catchment Water Management Board and the Department of Water, 
Land & Biodiversity Conservation October 2002. Based on the Gawler River Flood Management 
Study - Flood Management Plan prepared for The Gawler River Flood Management Working 
Party, BC Tonkin & Associates April 1994. 

Following the November 2005 flood, The Australian Government, South Australian Government, 
the six Constituent Councils and the Northern Adelaide Barossa Catchment Water Management 
Board committed to a funding package totalling $20 million to implement the Scheme. 

The Scheme had three parts as follows: 

o The construction of a flood mitigation dam on the North Para River near Gawler – the Bruce 
Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam was completed in December 2007. 

o Modifications to the dam wall and spillway of the South Para Reservoir to provide flood 
mitigation – currently in design to be constructed during 2011. 

o Construction of levees including the formalization of a controlled parallel flow path together 
with sensitive vegetation and channel maintenance along the lower reaches of the Gawler 
River - to be later described as Strategy 6d – this part of the Scheme was abandoned in 
2008. 

In February 2008 the Gawler River Mapping Project was completed to identify the impact of the March 
2007 estimates and to identify strategies to mitigate the impact of flooding.  

In June 2009 the Board amended the Business Plan to include the preparation of a Gawler River 
Flood Mitigation Scheme – Mark Two, that will build on the work of the last four years and bring 
forward strategies that can cost effectively reduce the impact of flooding from the Gawler River. 
The development of the Mark Two Scheme has been delayed by the need to provide additional 
funding to complete the modifications to the South Para Reservoir. 

Minor Works 

The replacement Turretfield Flow Gauge Weir constructed approximately 800 metres downstream from the 
Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam has been completed. 

Two additional survey monuments are being constructed adjacent to the dam wall and spillway to provide a 
high level of reliability in the deformation surveys of the structure that forms part of the dam wall 
maintenance program. 

South Para Reservoir Modifications 
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The GRFMA has accepted a cost-sharing estimate for SA Water to modify the dam wall and 
spillway of the South Para Reservoir in conjunction with the dam safety works. Construction is 
planned to commence in January and be completed by December 2011.  

General 

The GRFMA Board and constituent councils have been actively reviewing the Charter during the 
year. Two discussion papers have been prepared that canvass a number of issues including 
whether and how the Authority could undertake emerging issues related to the Gawler River. 
Changes to the Charter can only occur with the unanimous agreement of all constituent councils. 

The GRFMA made presentations to the constituent council to inform members of matters being 
considered by the Board as follows: 

District Council of Mallala Monday 11th January 2010 
Adelaide Hills Council  Tuesday 2nd March 2010 
The Barossa Council Tuesday 18th May 2010 
District Council of Mallala Monday 21st June 2010 

The following Policies have been adopted to provide management guidelines for the day-to-day 
business of the GRFMA: 

Policy A1 - Access to Meetings and Documents 
Policy C1 - Consultation 
Policy I1 - Internal Review of Decisions 
Policy O1 – Operations Manual 

All meetings of the GRFMA and its committees are open to the public. However under prescribed 
circumstances the public has been excluded on one occasion for the purpose set out in the 
following table. 

Forum 
Total 

Resolutions for 
the year 

Resolutions to 
exclude the 
Public - Sec 

90(3) 

Purpose 

Order for 
documents to 

remain 
confidential - 

Sec 91(7) 

Percentage 

Board 68 1 
To review 

Executive Officer 
Contract 

0 1.5% 

Technical 
Reference Panel 14 0  0 0% 

Properties Sale 
Committee 

Did Not Meet     

 

Mr Fred Pedler, Principal of Fred Pedler & Associates, has been engaged to provide Executive 
Officer services under a services agreement until 31st December 2011. Mr Pedler has experience 
in the administration of Councils and regional subsidiaries under the Local Government Act. 

The GRFMA has no employees and all services are engaged on a contract basis 

Information about the GRFMA, the Scheme and a number of documents are available on the 
website www.fredpedler.com and go to the grfma pages. 

The following reports were completed during the year and are available as downloads from the 
website. 

o Australian Water Environments November 2009, Gawler River Mapping Project Addendum 
o Australian Water Environments December 2009, Flood Damage Estimates South Para 

Reservoir Flood Mitigation Works 
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GAWLER RIVER FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Income Statement for the Year Ending 30th June 2010 
 

  2010  2009 

 Notes $  $ 

Income     

Subscriptions 3 40,002  24,000 
Investment Income 1 (d) 46,034  49,630 
State Government Grants  118,805  91,321 
Commonwealth Government Grants  118,805  91,321 
Other    0 

Total Income  323,646  256,272 

Expenditure     

Contractual Services 5 318,260  215,550 
Finance Charges  2,775  2,161 
Other  21,235  38,214 

Total Expenditure  342,270  255,925 

Surplus / (Deficit) before Impairment 
of Assets 

 (18,624)  347 

Impairment of Assets     

South Para 4   (33,835) 
Lower Gawler River 4   (311,559) 
Land 4   (35,422) 

Total Impairment of Assets  0  (380,816) 

     

Loss from Operations  (18,624)  (380,469) 

     

Capital Revenues     

State Government Grants    96,599 
Commonwealth Government Grants    96,599 

Total Capital Revenues  0  193,198 

     

Surplus / (Deficit)  (18,624)  (187,271) 

 
The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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GAWLER RIVER FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 

Balance Sheet as at 30th June 2010 
 
 

  2010 2009 

 Notes $ $ 

Current Assets    

Cash at Bank  0 3,524 
Investments 1 (d) 1,290,225 1,011,150 
Debtors - GST  1,016 1,157 

Total Current Assets  1,291,241 1,015,831 

Current Liabilities    

Bank Overdraft  6,034 0 
Creditors  3,000  

Total Current Liabilities  9,034 0 

Net Current Assets  1,282,207 1,015,831 

    

Non Current Assets    

Infrastructure 4 14,832,720 14,832,720 
Land 4 611,364 896,364 

Total Non Current Assets  15,444,048 15,729,084 

    

Net Assets  16,726,291 16,744,915 

    

Equity    

    
Accumulated Surplus  16,726,291 16,744,915 
    

Total Equity  16,726,291 16,744,915 

 
The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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GAWLER RIVER FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 

Statement of Change in Equity for the Year Ended 30th June 2010 
 

  2010  2009 

 Notes $  $ 

Accumulated Surplus     

Balance at beginning of period   16,744,915  16,932,186 
Net Surplus / (Deficit)  (18,624)  (187,271) 
     

Balance at end of period  16,726,291  16,744,915 

     

Total Equity  16,726,291  16,744,915 

 
The above Statement of Change in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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GAWLER RIVER FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 30th June 2010 
 

  2010  2009 

 Notes $  $ 

Cash Flows from Operating 
Activities 

    

Receipts   314,872  264,963 
Payments  (376,389)  (313,263) 
Interest Receipts  46,034  49,630 

Net Cash Provided by Operating 
Activities 

 (15,483)  1,330 

Cash Flows from Investment 
Activities 

    

Receipts  285,000  193,198 
Payments   0  (249,288) 

Net Cash Used in Investment 
Activities 

 285,000  (56,090) 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 
Held 

 269,517  (54,760) 

     

Cash at the beginning of the 
reporting period 

 1,014,674  1,069,434 

Cash at the end of the reporting 
period 

 1,284,191  1,014,674 

 
The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority – Financial Statements Year Ended 30th June 2010 

1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) The Local Government Reporting Entity 
 
This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared for use by the Gawler River Floodplain 
Management Authority. The Board has determined that the Authority is not a reporting entity. 
 
The Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority is a Regional Subsidiary under Section 43 and 
Schedule 2 0f the Local Government Act 1999. The Constituent Councils are the Adelaide Hills Council, 
The Barossa Council, Town of Gawler, Light Regional Council, District Council of Mallala and the City of 
Playford. 
 
All funds received and expended by the Authority have been included in the financial statements forming 
part of this financial report. 
 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
This financial report has been prepared in accordance with the following Accounting Standards: 
 
      AASB 1031 Materiality 
 
No other applicable Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations or other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board have been applied. 
 
The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historic costs and does not 
take into account changing money values, or except where specifically stated, current valuations of non-
current assets. 
 

(c)   Employees 

The Association has no employees. 

(d) Investments 

Investments are valued at cost. Interest revenues are recognized as they accrue. 

(e) Cash 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash deposits which are readily convertible to 
cash on hand and which are used in the cash management function on a day to day basis, net of 
outstanding bank overdraft. 

2 Functions / Activities of the Association 

(a) Revenues and expenses have been attributed to the following functions / activities, descriptions of which 
are set out in Note 2b. 

(b) The activities of the Authority are catagorised into the following function / activities: 

Administration: The operations of the Authority and its Board 

Other Environment: Flood Mitigation 

 
Note 2b Functions of the Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 

 

Revenue Expenses 
   

Year Grants Other Total 
Revenue 

% Expenses 
Total 

% 
Surplus 
(Deficit) 

    Administration       

2010 237,610 76,034 313,644 51.5% 76,390 22.3% 237,254 

2009 182,642 73,630 256,272 57.0% 255,925 50.7% 347 

      Other Environment: Flood Mitigation 

2010 0 295,002 295,002 48.5% 265,879 77.7% 29,123 

2009 193,198 0 193,198 43.0% 249,288 49.3% (56,090) 

                     Total 

2010 237,610 371,036 608,646 100.0% 342,269 100.0% 266,377 

2009 375,840 73,630 449,470 100.0% 505,213 100.0% (55,743) 
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3    Subscriptions 

The following subscriptions were levied on the Constituent Councils in accordance with Clause 10.2 of the 
Charter for the year: 

Constituent Council Scheme Works Maintenance Operations 

 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

Adelaide Hills Council $0 $0 $173 $0 $5,000 $4,000 

The Barossa Council $0 $0 $867 $0 $5,000 $4,000 

Town of Gawler $0 $0 $1,734 $0 $5,000 $4,000 

Light Regional Council $0 $0 $867 $0 $5,000 $4,000 

District Council of Mallala $0 $0 $2,892 $0 $5,000 $4,000 

City of Playford $0 $0 $3469 $0 $5,000 $4,000 

Total $0 $0 10,002 $0 $30,000 $24,000 

 

4    Non Current Assets, Non Current Liabilities 
 
The following are the Non Current Assets: 
 

 2010 2009 

Infrastructure   

North Para – at Cost $14,832,720 $14,650,218 

Plus new infrastructure – at Cost  $182,502 

 $14,832,720 $14,832,720 

   

South Para – at Cost $0 $33,835 

less: Impairment of design and supervision  ($33,835) 

 $0 $0 

   

Lower Gawler River – at Cost $0 $311,559 

less: Impairment of design and supervision  ($311,559) 

 $0 $0 

   

Total $14,832,720 $14,832,720 

   

Land   

Land and Houses – at Cost  2,100,810 

less: Impairment - Houses  ($1,235,810) 

Land and Easements – at Valuation $896,364  

Less: cost of land sold ($285,000)  

Land – at Valuation $611,364 $865,000 

   

Land and Easements - additions  $66,786 

less: Impairment  ($35,422) 

  $31,364 

   

Total $611,364 $896,364 

   

Total $15,444,084 $15,729,084 

 
There are no Non Current Liabilities 
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5 Contractual Services 

 Contractual Services involve payments or liabilities for the external provision of services and include (net of 
GST): 

 2010 2009 
Consultants Operations 
 
 Fred Pedler & Associates $86,830 $94,300 

Allsurv Engineering Services Pty Ltd $0 $1,364 
Australian Water Environments $49,830 $77,461 
Maloney Field Services $9,248 $5,739 
ETSA Utilities  $17,280 
URS Australia Pty Ltd  $8,087 
Urban and Regional Planning Solutions  $8,158 
The Lighthouse Public Relations  $3,161 
North East Constructions Pty Ltd $172,352  

Totals $318,260 $215,550 

Consultants Designs Infrastructure 
 

Bardavcol Pty Ltd  $180,717 

Totals $318,260 $396,267 

6 Comparison of Budget and Actual Results 

 2010 2009 
 Budget Actual Budget Actual 
 $ $ $ $ 
Revenue     
Administration 70,083 76,034 104,000 73,630 
Other Environment: Flood Mitigation 
Maintenance 

2,233,208 247,612 0 182,642 

Other Environment: Flood Mitigation Capital 570,000 285,000 2,591,606 193,198 

Total Revenue 2,873,291 608,646 2,695,606 449,470 
Expenditure     
Administration 129,833 76,390 52,000 47,714 
Other Environment: Flood Mitigation 
Maintenance 

2,684,070 265,879 0 208,211 

Other Environment: Flood Mitigation Capital 0 0 2,569,813 249,288 

Total Expenditure 2,813,903 342,269 2,621,813 505,213 

Surplus (Deficit) 59,388 266,377 73,793 (55,743) 
 
7 Expenditure Commitment 
 

1. An agreement has been entered into with SA Water Corporation to undertake flood mitigation works to the 
South Para Reservoir dam wall and spillway in 2011 for an estimated cost of $4,370,213 which includes a 16% 
contingency. 

2. An agreement has been entered into with Fred Pedler & Associates to provide Executive Officer and 
Supervision of Consultants services to 31st December 2011. 

3. The State Government has approved funding for the Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme totalling 
$8,166,612 of which $6,867,190 has been paid to the Authority. 

4. The Commonwealth Government has approved funding for the Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme under 
the Regional Flood Mitigation Program totaling $8,713,371 of which $6,867,190 has been paid to the Authority. 
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Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority – Financial Statements Year Ended 30th June 2010 

 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT 
 
I, Frederick William Pedler, the person for the time being occupying the position of Executive 
Officer of the Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority do hereby state that the financial 
statements for the Authority for the 2009 - 2010 financial year are to the best of my knowledge 
presented fairly and in accordance with accounting procedures which have been maintained in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial 
Management) Regulations 1999 made under that Act. 
 
Dated  10th August 2009 
 

 
 
Fred Pedler 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
 
 
CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE 
 
To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of the 
Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority the Authorities Auditor, HLB Mann Judd, has 
maintained its independence in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 
1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1999 made under that Act. 
 
This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 16A(2) Local 
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1999. 
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Assets
$       1,291,241 
$     14,832,720 

Land  $          611,364 
 $     16,735,325 

 $             9,034 

Net Equity $     16,726,291 

Allocation of Councils Interst in Net Assets

Accumulated 
Suscriptions for 
Operations to 30 

June 2010

Accumulated 
Subscriptions for 

Maintenance to 30 
June 2010

Accumulated 
Suscriptions for 

Scheme Works to 
30 June 2010

All Subscriptions to 
30 June 2010

Percentage of 
Contributions to 

the Total

Council's 
Interests in Net 

Assets

 $            30,166  $                 173  $              70,988 101,327$        2.36% 395,554$         
 $            30,166  $                 867  $            354,951 385,984$        9.01% 1,506,779$      
 $            30,166  $              1,734  $            709,892 741,792$        17.31% 2,895,759$      
 $            30,166  $                 867  $            354,951 385,984$        9.01% 1,506,779$      
 $            30,166  $              2,892  $         1,183,146 1,216,204$     28.38% 4,747,738$      
 $            30,166  $              3,469  $         1,419,763 1,453,398$     33.92% 5,673,681$      

180,996$        10,002$          4,093,691$       4,284,689$     100.00% 16,726,291$    

"The ‘Schedule of Constituent Councils’ Interests in Net Assets’ will reflect the proportionate contribution each Constituent Council has 
made to the growth of the net assets of the Authority having regard to the proportionate contribution to subscriptions. The Schedule 
when updated by the Board at the end of each financial year will reflect the proportionate contribution of each Constituent Council since 
the commencement of the Authority and once accepted by each Constituent Council will be evidence of the agreed proportion of a 
Constituent Council’s interests in the net assets as at 30 June in that year."

Schedule of Constituent Councils’ Interests in Net Assets’ as at the 30th June 2010 adopted by the Board in accordance with Clause 
15.5 of the Charter on 19th August 2010.

Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 

Schedule of Constituent Council's Interests in Net Assets as at 30th June 2010

Prepared to meet the requirements of Clause 15.5 of the Charter

This Schedule has been prepared on the basis that the Authority was 'wound up' on 30th June 2010. The value of infrastructure and 
land as stated in the Audited Financial Statements at 30th June have been included. Grants and contributions from the Commonwealth 
Government, State Government and the Northern Adelaide Barossa Catchment Water Management Board that have contributed to 
these costs have not been deducted.

Town of Gawler

Calculation of Net Equity

Investments / Debtors

For the purposes of this Clause All Subscriptions by Constituent Councils have been included. Contributions by Town of Gawler, Light 
Regional Council, District Council of Mallala and City of Playford to the mapping Project have been excluded. 

Light Regional Council

Infrastructure

District Council of Mallala
City of Playford

Less Liabilities

Overdraft / Creditors

Constituent Councils

Adelaide Hills Council
The Barossa Council
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Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 
Achievements Against the Business Plan 2009 – 2012 for the period July 2009 to June 2010 

For the previous achievements see the Annual Reports for the years ending June 2003 to 2009. 
 

 

Evaluation of Performance Against the Business Plan 

This Statement of Achievements Against the Business Plan will form part of the Key Outcomes Summary to Councils following the meetings at which it is tabled. The 
Statement will be prepared for the December, February, and June Board Meetings. The June report will form part of the GRFMA Annual Report 2009 - 2010. 

Part A: Funding 

Performance Targets: Timings: To be measured By: Actual Achievements 

Secure Additional Project Funding June 2009 All Councils, stakeholders 
and Governments agree to 
contribute to the project in 
accordance with the Plan 

May 2006 all Governments agree to the funding package 
totalling $20 million 

March 2010 SMA approval for $1,066,612 additional grants 
for South Para Reservoir project 

Scheme Total now $21,721,927 

Grant Claims At all times Lodge claims monthly for the 
payment of Commonwealth 
and State Government 
Grants. 

Claims lodged at the end of the month 

Maintain positive Cash Flow At all times Positive bank account 
balances at all times. 

Positive cash flow maintained 

Part B: Proposed Flood Mitigation Scheme Works 

North Para Works 

Construction of the North Para 
Flood Control Dam completed 

December 2007 Completed  

Scope of work expanded to include the relocation of the Turretfield flow gauge weir and tipping bucket rain gauge to a site downstream from the proposed dam. 
Site selection and ecological impact assessment of the weir construction completed October 2007 

Approval for the construction of 
the flow gauge weir 

March 2008 Water Affecting Activity 
Licence  

 October 2008 

Construction of the flow gauge 
weir 

February 2008 Call tenders for construction 
of the flow gauge weir 

9th December 2008 Contract let (delayed by wet weather) 

 June 2008 Construction of the flow 
gauge weir completed 

23rd April 2010 construction completed 
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Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 
Achievements Against the Business Plan 2009 – 2012 for the period July 2009 to June 2010 

For the previous achievements see the Annual Reports for the years ending June 2003 to 2009. 
 

 

 

South Para Works 

The South Para Reservoir is under the control and management of SA Water Corporation who have agreed to undertake the required modifications to the South 
Para Reservoir to provide the required level of flood mitigation capacity as a cost to the Scheme. 

Dam safety review and design proposal to modify the dam wall and spillway completed September 2005 

Detailed hydrology study of the catchment using the very latest methodologies let to Department of Transport, Energy and Infrastructure completed March 2007. 

Performance Targets: Timings: To be measured By: Actual Achievements 

Detailed design of works March 2009 Completion of detailed 
design and tender 
documents 

 Sep 2009 Final Design and ECI offer completed 

 Sep 2009 GRFMA share of costs advised 

 March 2010 GRFMA acceptance of shared cost estimate 

Construction of the works September 2009 Completion of construction  

 
 

Lower Gawler River 

Following the November 2005 flood the scope of works was amended to include a geotechnical assessment of the existing flood control levees was undertaken in 
March 2006 

The Mapping Project Stage Two identified that the parallel flow path identified as Strategy 6d proposed to carry the mitigated flow through the Lower Gawler River 
in a formalised parallel flood path would be drowned out in a 1 in 100 year flood event.  

Alternate preliminary strategies to protect the townships identified in the Mapping Project Stage Two. 

Prioritisation on a cost benefit 
basis of identified strategies to 
reduce flooding from the Gawler 
River 

June 2008 Approval of strategies to 
mitigate flooding on the 
Gawler River. 

December 2008 - Assessment Report completed  

December 2008 - Strategy 6d abandoned. 
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Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 
Achievements Against the Business Plan 2009 – 2012 for the period July 2009 to June 2010 

For the previous achievements see the Annual Reports for the years ending June 2003 to 2009. 
 

 

 

Mapping of the Floodplain 

Following the receipt of the Department for Transport Energy and Infrastructure Hydrological Study of the Gawler River Catchment – March 2007 report, in May 
2007 the Board approved a Mapping of the Floodplain project to identify the parts of the floodplain that will remain at risk of flooding, post works, in a 100 ARI flood 
event.  

Australian Water Environments with Water Technology Australia were engaged in June 2007 to undertake the project 

Performance Targets: Timings: To be measured By: Actual Achievements 

Preparation of flood mapping February 2008 Flood mapping plans 
prepared 

Stage 1 completed February 2008 

Preparation of concept flood 
mitigation strategy and final report 

April 2008 Concept flood mitigation 
strategy prepared 

Stage 2 completed December 2008 

Prioritisation of strategies June 2008 Prioritised Strategies 
Prepared 

 Proposed as part of Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme 
Mark Two Strategy 

In September 2009 SA Water advised the GRFMA of its share of the costs to undertake the South Para Reservoir Works. As this cost significantly exceeded earlier 
cost estimates and the budgeted provision for the project a revised application was made to the Stormwater Management Authority (SMA) for additional funding. 
The SMA advised that the GRFMA should prepare a mapping and cost benefit case to support the application for additional funding. This action was endorsed by 
the Board (GRB 09/0044 of 15th October 2009) 

Preparation of floodplain mapping 
Addendum – WO South Para 
Works 

October 2009 Mapping series and 
‘difference’ maps prepared 
for the scenario WO South 
Para Works 

 Addendum map series completed October 2009 

Preparation of Cost Benefit study 
South Para Works 

November 2009 A report of the benefit of the 
cost of the South Para works 
against the estimated flood 
damages if the works do not 
proceed 

 Cost benefit report completed November 2009 
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Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 
Achievements Against the Business Plan 2009 – 2012 for the period July 2009 to June 2010 

For the previous achievements see the Annual Reports for the years ending June 2003 to 2009. 
 

 

 

Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme – Mark Two 

Following the receipt of the Gawler River Floodplain Mapping Project – Flood Mitigation Options – Preliminary Assessment – AWE November 2008 - Final Draft and 
the Gawler River Floodplain Mapping Project – Flood Mitigation Options – Preliminary Assessment – AWE December 2008 – Stage Two Report, the Board 
approved the preparation of a Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme – Mark Two report that will guide the Board in its assessment of Priority Two Works (see 
above)  

The funding for this project has been withdrawn due to South Para Project cost overrun  

 
Part B: Maintenance of the Scheme 

Performance Targets: Timings: To be measured By: Actual Achievements 

Preparation of a Schedule of Dam 
Maintenance Works including 
costings 

January 2008 Completion of the Schedule O&M Plan adopted July 2008 

Six monthly inspection June and December Completion of Inspection 
Report 

April 2009 – Dam Inspector Inspection 

Sep 2009 - Dam Inspector Inspection 

April 2010 – Dam Inspector Inspection 

Inspection following initial filling of 
the Dam 

Within one month of 
event 

Completion of Inspection 
Report 

Nov 2009 - Call for survey services 

Dec 2009 – Alexander Symonds engaged as surveyor  

Approval for the erection of two additional survey pillars 
October 2009 

April 2010 – AWE engaged as construction designers and 
project superintendent 
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Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 
Achievements Against the Business Plan 2009 – 2012 for the period July 2009 to June 2010 

For the previous achievements see the Annual Reports for the years ending June 2003 to 2009. 
 

 

Part C: Operation of the Regional Subsidiary 

Performance Targets: Timings: To be measured By: Actual Achievements 

Reports to Stakeholders Twice yearly The publication and distribution of a Fact 
Sheet to all stakeholders and affected 
landowners. 

Dam Opening fact Sheet August 2008 

 Bi-Monthly Key Outcomes Summary to be published 
following each Board Meeting to include a 
summary of the progress of the 
development of the Scheme.  

 Business Plan 2009 – 2012 adopted June 2009 

 Achievements against the Business Plan 2009 – 
2012 completed in December, April and June. 

Maintain effective Regional 
Subsidiary 

December The performance of the Executive Officer 
be reviewed annually 

 Review conducted January 2010 

 August The appointment of Auditor, Bank 
Operators, levels of insurance, appropriate 
registrations, delegations and policies be 
reviewed annually. 

 Review conducted August 2009 

Review of the Business 
Plan 

By 31st March  Review the Business Plan prior to preparing 
the Budget 

Forward to the Councils 

 Approved for consultation 15th April 2010 

Annual Budget By 31st March, June, 
October, December, 
April 

Adopt for consultation forward to Councils 

Adopt Budget – copy to Councils in 5 days 

Conduct Budget Reviews 

 Approved for consultation 15th April 2010 

 Adopted 17th June 2010  

Subscriptions June 

December 

Send half year subscriptions to Council 

Send half year subscriptions to Council  

 All subscriptions paid 

Report to Constituent 
Councils 

Following each Board 
meeting 

By 30th September 

The receipt of the following reports by 
Councils: 

 Board Meeting Key Outcome 
Summary 

 Annual Report including Annual 
Financial Statements  

 Key Outcomes Summary distributed following 
each meeting  

 Annual Reports forwarded to Councils 2nd 
September 2009 
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The District Council of Mallala 

2a Wasleys Road, Mallala SA  5502 




